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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW
The directors present their Annual Report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.
The audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020 are set out in the attached financial statements.

Mitel Europe Limited operates as a holding company for the EMEA region within the Mitel group of companies and
charges management fees to its subsidiary holdings for services provided.

During 2020, as part of a restructure of the group, Mitel Europe Limited purchased Mitel South Pacific PTY Limited,
Mitel Far East Limited and Mitel Cloud Communications Sarl from MLN UK MidCo Limited, its immediate parent
company. MLN UK MidCo Limitcd was subsequently dissolved, and Mitel Networks (International) Limited became
the immediate parent company of Mitel Europe Limited.

The company made a profit of £53,856,000 in the year (2019 — £116,000 loss).

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

There are no subsequent events requiring disclosure in these financial statements.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

It is anticipated that the company will continue to exist as a service provider to subsidiary holdings for the foresecable
future.

Following the deal agreed between the UK and the European Union on its exit from the EU on 31 December 2020,
there remains a general level of economic uncertainty. However, as a holding company, the impact on Mitel Europe
Limited is minimal. Managerment are monitoring the situation closely in order to be able to respond to any changes in
the political and economic climate.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Given the nature of the company, there are no key performance indicators that the directors feel are specific to this
entity.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The main financial risk is the carrying value of the investments in the company’s subsidiaries. The directors prepare
annual impairment reviews in order to ascertain whether impairment is required against the investments.

GOING CONCERN

After making enquiries, the directors have a reascnable expectation that the company has adequate resources to
continue in operational existence for at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial statements.
Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financizl statements. In reaching this
conclusion the directors have assessed both the impact of COVID-19 on the business as well as the financial position
and performance of the business below.

COVID-19

The worldwide spread of COVID-19 has resulted in authorities implementing numerous measures to contain the virus,
including travel bans and restrictions, quarantines, social and physical distancing, and business limitations and
shutdowns. The COVID-19 pandemic has created a global slowdown of economic activity, which has, and will likely
continue to decrease demand for a broad variety of goods and services, while also disrupting sales channels and
marketing activities until the disease is contained. As at the date of this report, the directors and management do not
consider the COVID-19 pandemic to have had a material effect on the company’s financial position given that Mitel
Europe Limited operates as a holding company for the EMEA region within the Mitel group of companies and its
trading activity is limited to charging management fees to its subsidiary holdings for services provided.
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

GOING CONCERN (continued)
COVID-19 (continued)

At 31 December 2020, the company held net current assets of £54,195,000, consisting fargely of current intercompany
receivables of £68,209,000, cash at bank of £258,000 and current intercompany payables of £13,233,000. The
company generated a profit in the year of £53,856,000, including £57,049,000 in dividends receivable. The company
has limited financial obligations outside the Mitel Group and revenue is generated through management fees for
services provided to its subsidiary companies at a contracted operating margin percentage.

In assessing the going concern position of Mitel Europe Limited the directors have assessed the consolidated
performance of the Mitel Group at the Mitel Networks (International) Limited consolidation level, as the company is
a wholly owned subsidiary of Mitel Networks {International) Limited, and is reliant on the performance of the wider
group to enable it to continue to generate management fee income,

The directors and management have considered all the available information including reviewing the consolidated
group forecasts for a period of twelve months from the date of signing the financial statements and have no reason to
believe that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt over the ability of the Mitel group to continue
as a going concem. Accordingly, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for at least twelve months from the date of signing this report and, therefore, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the report and accounts.

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

DocuSigned by:

éruyrj X tiseack

2B4405 .

G J Hiscock
Director

7/9/2021 | 8:09 AM PDT

(¥F)



DacuSign Envelope ID: 6D762393-5B2A-43BE-ACAB-3180586BC35E

MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
The directors present their Annual Report and the audited financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2020.

ACCOUNTING PERIOD

These financial statements are for the year ended 31 December 2020. The comparative results are for the year ended
31 December 2019.

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid during the year (2019 - £nil), and no dividends have been paid or proposed after the balance
sheet date.

DIRECTORS

The directors of the company, who served throughout the financial year and subsequently, are as follows.

G I Hiscock
C J Evans

R E Hodgetts
S Taylor

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The company has made qualifying third party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were made
during the year and remain in force at the date of this report.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Details of future developments can be found in the Strategic Report on page 2.

POST BALANCE SHEET EVENTS

Details of future developments can be found in the Strategic Report on page 2.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

Given the nature of the company, the main financial risk is the carrying value of the investment in its subsidiaries.
The directors prepare annual impairment reviews in order to ascertain whether an impairment is required against its
investments.

Other financial risks include:

Credit risk
The company’s financial assets that are exposed to credit risk consist primarily of cash at bank and in hand, and
accounts receivable and other receivables. Cash and cash equivalents are invested in government and commercial
paper with investment grade listing. The majority of receivables are with other group companies and as such, this risk
is limited.

Foreign currency risk

The company transacts mostly in British pounds and is therefore not exposed to significant foreign currency risk. It
is, however, exposed to some currency rate fluctuations relating to future net cash flows from operations
predominately in Euros and US dollars. From time to time, the company uses foreign currency forward contracts and
foreign currency swaps to minimise the short-term impact of currency fluctuations on foreign currency receivables,
payables and inter-company balances. These contracts are not entered inte for speculative purposes and are not treated
as hedges for accounting purposes.
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

AUDITOR
Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:
»  so far as each of the directors is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the company’s auditor
is unaware; and

» cach of the directors has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that
information.

This confirmation is given and should be interpreted in accordance with the provisions of s418 of the Companies Act
2006.

A resolution to reappoint Deloitte LLP as the company’s auditor will be proposed at the forthcoming Annual General
Meeting.

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

[én?o A Bseock

874BF198C2B4405 .

G J Hiscock
Director

7/9/2021 | 8:09 AM PDT
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable law and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the directors
have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting
Practice (United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable law) including FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting
Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland”. Under company law the directors must not approve the
financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the company
and of the profit or loss of the company for that period. In preparing these financial statements, the directors are
required to:

select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

s make judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

e state whether applicable UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

s  prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
company will continue in business.

The directors are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient to show and explain the
company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the company and
enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006. They are also responsible
for safeguarding the assets of the company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention and detection of
fraud and other irregularities.
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

Report on the audit of the financial statements

Opinion
In our opinion the financial statements of Mitel Europe Limited (the ‘company’):

» give atrue and fair view of the state of the company’s affairs as at 31 December 2020 and of its loss for the
year then ended;

e  have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice,
including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and
Republic of {reland”; and

« have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financial staternents which comprise:

The profit and loss account;

the balance sheet;

the statement of changes in equity;

the statement of accounting policies; and
the related notes 1 to 15.

The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United Kingdom
Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in
the UK and Republic of Ireland™ (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable
law. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the auditor's responsibilities for the audit of
the financial statements section of our report.

We are independent of the company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the
financial statements in the UK, including the Financial Reporting Council’s (the ‘FRC’s’} Ethical Standard, and we
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Conclusions relating to going concern
We are required by [SAs (UK) to report in respect of the following matters where:

» the directors’ use of the going concern basis of accounting in preparation of the financial statements is not
appropriate; or

s the directors have not disclosed in the financial statements any identified material uncertainties that may
cast significant doubt about the company’s ability to continue to adopt the going concern basis of accounting
for a period of at least twelve months from the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
MITEL EUROPE LIMITED (continued)

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If we identify such material
inconsistencies or apparent material misstatements, we are required to determine whether there is a material
misstatement in the financial statements or a material misstatement of the other information. If, based on the work we
have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report
that fact.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters.

Responsibilities of directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities statement, the directors are responsible for the preparation
of the financial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such internal control as
the directors determine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing the company’s ability to continue as
a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of
accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the company or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Aunditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
[SAs (UK) will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements is located on the FRC’s website
at: www.frc.org.uk/auditorsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
Opinions on other matters prescribed by the Companies Act 2006
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

o the information given in the directors’ report for the financial year for which the financial statements are
prepared is consistent with the financial statements; and
¢ the directors’ report has been prepared in accordance with applicable legal requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the company and its environment obtained in the course of the
audit, we have not identified any material misstatements in the strategic report or the directors’ report.
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE MEMBER OF
MITEL EUROPFE. I.TMITED (continued)

Matters on which we are regitired to report by exception
Under the Companies Act 2006 we are required to report in respect of the following matters if, in our opinion:

e adequate accounting records have not been kept, or returns adequate for our audit have not been received
from branches not visited by us; or

* the financial statements are not in agreement with the accounting records and returns; or

o certain disclosures of directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for our audit.

We have nothing to report in respect of these matters,

{se of our report

This report is made solely to the company’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of the
Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the company’s members those
matters we are required to state to them in an auditor’s report and for no other purpose. To the fullest extent permitted
by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the company and the company’s members as
a body, for our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

Pet 257,

Michael Jeffery (Senior statutory auditor)
For and on behalf of Deloitte LLP
Statutory Auditor

Newcastle, United Kingdom

(09 July 2021 |
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
For the year ended 31 December 2020

Note 2020 2019
£000 £000
TURNOVER 3 5,290 6,503
Administrative expenses (4,789 (6,114)
OPERATING PROFIT 501 339
Amounts written off investments (5,184) {1,880)
Net finance income 4 1,490 1,187
Income from shares in group undertakings 57,049 -
PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAXATION 6 53,856 (304)
Tax on profit/(loss) 7 - 188
PROFIT/HL.OSS) FOR THE FINANCIAL
YEAR 53,856 (116}

All activities derive from continuing operations.

There have been no recognised gains and losses for the current financial year or the prior financial year other than as
stated in the profit and loss account and, accordingly, no separate statement of comprehensive income is presented.

The notes on pages 13 to 24 form part of these financial statements.

10
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED
BALANCE SHEET
At 31 December 2020
2020 2019
Note £2000 £000
FIXED ASSETS
Investments 8 145,531 146,939
Debtors due after more than one year 9 24,084 24,930
169,615 171,869
CURRENT ASSETS
Debtors due within one year 10 68,410 16,492
Cash at bank and in hand 258 242
68,668 16,734
CREDITORS: amounts falling due within
one year 12 {14,473) (22,530)
NET CURRENT ASSETS/(LIABILITIES) 54,195 (5,796)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT
ASSETS/(LIABILITIES), BEING NET
ASSETS 223,810 166,073
CAPITAL AND RESERVES
Called-up share capital 13 2 2
Share premium account 17,436 13,736
Profit and loss account 206,372 152,335
SHAREHOLDER’S FUNDS 223,810 166,073

The financial statements of Mitel Europe Limited, registered number 09059484, were approved by the Board of
Directors and authorised for issue on

Signed on behalf of the Board of Directors

[évu[)on? 3. teesck

574BF183C2B44056

G J Hiscock
Director

7/9/2021 | 8:09 AM PDT

11



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6D762393-582A-43BE-ACAG-3190586BC3I5E

MITEL EUROPE LIMITED
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
At 31 December 2020
Share Profit
Share premium and loss
Note capital account account Total
£'600 £000¢ £000 £000
At 1 January 2019 2 13,736 152,400 166,138
Loss for the financial year - - (116) (116)
Total comprehensive expense - - {110) (116)
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based
payments 15 - - 51 51
At 31 December 2019 2 13,736 152,335 166,073
Profit for the financial year - - 53,856 53,836
Total comprehensive income - - 53,856 53,856
Issue of share capital - 3,700 - 3,700
Credit to equity for equity-settled share-based
payments I5 - - 181 181
At 31 December 2020 2 17,436 206,372 223,810

12
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1.

ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements are prepared in accordance with applicable United Kingdom Accounting Standards.
The particular accounting policies adopted, which have been applied consistently throughout the current
financial year and the prior financial year, are described below.

Accounting convention

Mitel Europe Limited is a private company limited by shares incorporated in the United Kingdom under the
Companies Act 2006 and is registered in England and Wales. The address of the company’s registered office
is shown on page 1

The principal activities of the company and the nature of the company’s operations are set out in the Strategic
Report.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention and in accordance with FRS
102 “The Financial Reporting Standard applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireland” (“FRS 102”).

The functional currency of Mitel Europe Limited is constdered to be pounds sterling because that is the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the company operates.

Exemptions

The company has taken advantage of the following exemptions available under FRS 102 as equivalent
disclosures have been given in the consolidated financial statements of MLN TopCo Limited which include
the results of Mitel Europe Limited:

. the exemption from preparing a statement of cash flows;

. the exemption from disclosing key management personne! compensation;
. the exemption from certain financial instrument disclosures;

. the exemption from disclosing share-based payment information; and

. the exemption from disclosing related party transactions.

The company has taken advantage of the exemption permitted by section 400 of the Companies Act 2006 and
not produced consolidated financial statements as, at 31 December 2020, it was itself a wholly-owned
subsidiary of MLN TopCo Limited. The financial statements therefore present information about the company
as an individual undertaking and not about its group.

Copies of the consolidated financial statements of MLN TopCo Limited will be filed along with these financial
statemnents.

Going concern

After making enquiries, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the company has adequate resources
to continue in operational existence for at least twelve months from the date of approval of the financial
statements. Accordingly, they continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the financial statements.
In reaching this conclusion the directors have assessed both the impact of COVID-19 on the business as well
as the financial position and performance of the business below.

COVID-19

The worldwide spread of COVID-19 has resulted in authorities implementing numerous measures to contain
the virus, including travel bans and restrictions, quarantines, social and physical distancing, and business
limitations and shutdowns. The COVID-19 pandemic has created a global slowdown of economic activity,
which has, and will likely continue to decrease demand for a broad variety of goods and services, while also
disrupting sales channels and marketing activities until the disease is contained. As at the date of this report,
the directors and management do not consider the COVID-19 pandemic to have had a material effect on the
company’s financial position given that Mitel Europe Limited operates as a holding company for the EMEA
region within the Mitel group of companies and its trading activity is limited to charging management fees to
its subsidiary holdings for services provided.

13
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Going concern (continued)
COVID-12 (continued)

At 31 December 2020, the company held net current assets of 54,195,000, consisting largely of current
intercompany receivables of £68,209,000, cash at bank of £258,000 and current intercompany payables of
£13,233,000. The company generated a profit in the year of £53,856,000, including £57,049,000 in dividends
receivable. The company has limited financial obligations outside the Mitel Group and revenue is generated
through management fees for services provided to its subsidiary companies at a contracted operating margin
percentage.

In assessing the going concern position of Mitel Europe Limited the directors have assessed the consolidated
performance of the Mitel Group at the Mitel Networks (International) Limited consolidation level, as the
company is a wholly owned subsidiary of Mitel Networks (International) Limited, and is reliant on the
performance of the wider group to enable it to continue to generate management fee income.

The directors and management have considered all the available information including reviewing the
consolidated group forecasts for a period of twelve months from the date of signing the financial statements
and have no reason to believe that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt over the ability
of the Mitel group to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have a reasonable expectation
that the company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for at least twelve months from
the date of approval of the financial statements and, therefore, they continue to adopt the going concern basis
in preparing the report and accounts.

Investments
Fixed asset investments are stated at cost less any provision for impairment.
Impairment of fixed asset investments

An asset is impaired when the present value of future cash flows, discounted at the group’s weighted average
cost of capital, is less than the asset’s carrying value. Where a fixed asset investment is a non-trading company,
the value of its net assets is used as a basis for determining any potential impairment.

Where indicators exist for a decrease in impairment loss, and the decrease can be related objectively to an event
occurring after the impairment was recognised, the prior impairment loss is tested to determine reversal. An
impairment loss is reversed on an individual impaired asset to the extent that the revised recoverable value
does not lead to a revised carrying amount higher than the carrying value had no impairment been recognised.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the company becomes a party to the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at transaction price.

Financial assets and liabilities are only offset in the balance sheet when, and only when, there exists a legally
enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and the company intends either to settle on a net basis, or
to realise the asset and settle the liability separately.

Loans and receivables

Trade receivables, loans and other receivables that have fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market are classified as ‘loans and receivables’. Loans and receivables are measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment. Interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate except for short-term receivables when the recognition of interest would be
immaterial.
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2020

1. ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Other financial liabilities
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of transaction costs.

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method,
with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of the financial liability and of
allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash payments through the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, or the net carrying amount on initial recognition.

Turnover

Turnover consists of management fees for services to its subsidiary companies. Turnover is recognised in the
period in which the services are provided.

Taxation

Current tax is provided at amounts expected to be paid (or recovered) using the tax rates and laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date.

Deferred taxation is provided in full on timing differences that result in an obligation at the balance sheet date
to pay more tax, or a right to pay less tax, at a future date, at rates expected to apply when they crystallise based
on current tax rates and law. Timing differences arise from the inclusion of items of income and expenditure
in taxation computations in periods different from those in which they are included in the financial statements.

Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is regarded as more likely than not that they will be
recovered. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are not discounted.

Dividend income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s rights to receive payment have been
established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the company and the amount
of revenue can be measured reliably).

Share-based payments
The company has applied the requirements of FRS 102 Section 26 relating to share-based payment transactions.

Certain employees receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, being share options in parent
company, MLN TopCo Limited. Options granted under the plan are generally granted for a fixed number of
shares with an exercise price at least equal to the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant and have a
term of ten years.

The expense for equity-settled share-based payments is based on the fair value estimate made on the grant date
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for each award and is recognised on a straight-line basis over
the employee service period, which is the vesting period. The company estimates the volatility of its stock for
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using historical volatility of the company’s stock. As the options are
over shares in MLN TopCo Limited and equity settled, a capital contribution is also recorded.

Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur, through reversal of the previously recognized expense on the
awards that were forfeited during the year.

15



DocuSign Envelope ID: 6D762393-582A-43BE-ACAB-3190586BC35E

MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2020

2.

4.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the company’s accounting policies, which are described in note 1, the directors are required
to make judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical
experience and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates
are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the
period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying the company’s accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations (which are dealt with
separately below), that the directors have made in the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies
and that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the financial statements.

Yaluation of investments

The company carries out an annual impairment review of its investments. When assessing the valuation, the
directors consider the past and budgeted future performance of the underlying entity. The directors use certain
assumptions about its future performance, for example, the growth of the business and profitability. Estimates
are also made in determining the group’s weighted average cost of capital.

Key source of estimation uncertainty
Management do not consider there to be any key areas involving estimation uncertainty.

TURNOVER

Turnover relates to one class of business and arises in the United Kingdom. Analysis of turnover by destination
is stated below:

2020 2019
£000 £000
United Kingdom 1,612 2,361
Rest of Europe 3,678 4,142
5,290 6,503
All of the company’s turnover is derived from the rendering of services.
NET FINANCE INCOME
2020 2019
£000 £000
Interest payable on loan note 21 21
Interest receivable on loan note {2,044) (2,049)
Foreign exchange loss 333 842
Other finance income - (N

(1,490) (1,187)
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2020

MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

5. INFORMATION REGARDING DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES

Employee costs (including directors’ emoluments)
Wages and salaries

Social security costs

Other pension costs

Share-based payments

The average monthly number of employees during the year was made up as follows:

Support

Directors’ remuneration

Emoluments

Company contributions to money purchase pension
scheme

The number of directors who:

Are members of a money purchase pension scheme

Exercised options over shares

Had awards receivable in the form of shares under a
long-term incentive scheme

Amounts in respect of the highest paid director

Emoluments

Company contributions to money purchase pension
scheme

2020 2019
£'000 £000
2,890 3,733

370 490
95 148
393 -
3,748 4,371
No. No.
15 17
£°000 £000
506 644
31 21
537 665
No. No.

3 3
£°000 £000
200 273
11 9
211 282

G ] Hiscock is remunerated by other group companies for his services to the group as a whole. It is not
practicable to allocate his remuneration between services to the company and to the group.
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NOTES 10O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2020

6. PROFIT/(LOSS) BEFORE TAX

MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

2020 2019
£°000 £7000
This is stated after charging/(crediting)
Auditor’s remuneration:
- Fees payable to Deloitte LLLP and their
associates for the audit of the company’s accounts 9 9
Foreign exchange loss 533 842
Impairment of fixed asset investments 5,184 1,880
7. TAX ON PROFIT/(LOSS)
2020 2019
£000 £000
Current tax on profit/(loss}
United Kingdom corporation tax:
Current tax on income for the year - -
Adjustment in respect of prior periods - 188
Total current tax - 188
Deferred tax
Deferred tax (Note 11) - -
- 188

Total tax on profit/(loss)

The difference between the total tax shown above and the amount calculated by applying the blended rate of

UK corporation tax to the loss before tax is as follows:

£°0060 £000

Profit/(Loss) before tax 53,856 (304)
Tax on profit/(loss) at standard UK corporation tax

rate of 19% (2019 — 19%) 10,233 (58)
Effects of:
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes (9.813) 329
Group relief (420) 271
Adjustment in respect of prior period - (188)
Total tax expense for the year - (188)

The Finance Bill 2021-22, which is currently passing through the Houses of Parliament, proposes an increase
to the main rate of corporation tax to 25% from April 2023.

Group relief was claimed from Mitel Netwerks (International) Limited.
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCTAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2020
8. FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS
Subsidiary
companies
£2000
Cost
At 1 January 2020 265,550
Additions 3,777
At 31 December 2020 269,327
Provisions for impairment
At 1 January 2020 118,611
Provision for impairment 5,184
At 31 December 2020 123,795
Net book value
At 31 December 2020 145,531
At 31 December 2019 146,939

A provision for impairment has been recognised against one of the company’s investments as a result of a
review of the business of the subsidiary.

The company has investments in the following subsidiary undertakings:
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

8.

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (continued)

Mitel Networks Holdings Limited

Aastra Telecom (UK) Limited

Mitel Netherlands BV (c)

Mitel Schweiz AG

Aastra Telecom Europe A/S
Mitel Denmark A/S
Mitel France SAS

Mitel Ttalia SpA

Mitel Communications Finland Oy

Mitel Norway AS
Mitel Lease SA (a)
Mitel Belgium SA (a)
Mitel Austria GmbH

Aastra Telecom Portugal SA

Mitet Networks Limited (b)
Mitel Spain SL

Telepo Limited

Connected Hotels Limited

Connected Guests Limited (b)

TigerTMS Limited (b)

ShoreTel UK Limited

Registered office
Castlegate Business Park,
Portskewett. NP26 5YR UK
Castlegate Business Park,
Portskewett. NP26 SYR UK
Van Deventerlaan 30-40,
3528 AE Utrecht,
Netherlands
Zieglemattstrasse 1,
CH-4503 Solothurn,
Switzerland
Roskildevej 342 B, 2. DK-
2630 Taastrup, Denmark
Roskildevej 342 B, 2. DK-
2630 Taastrup, Denmark
Rue Arnoid Schoenberg 1,
78286 Guyancourt, France
Corso di Porta Vittoria 9,
Milan, Ttaly
Tekniikantie 14 (Innopoli
I1} 02150 Espoo, Finland
Ostensjaveien 39/41,
0667 Oslo, Norway
Rue de la Grenouillette 2b,
1130 Brussels, Belgium
Telecomlaan 9 bus 2,
1831 Diegem, Belgium
Schdnbrunner Str, 218/6.02,
1120 Vienna, Austria
Praga de Alvalade, Edif.
Alvalade, n® 6 — 3° Esq.
1700-036 Lisbon, Portugal
Castlegate Business Park,
Portskewett. NP26 S5YR UK
C/Capitan Haya 1, pl 17
28020 Madrid, Spain
Suite 1, 3" Floor [1-12 St.
James’s Square, London
SWI1Y 4LB UK
5 New Street Square,
London EC4A 3TW UK
5 New Street Square,
London EC4A 3TW UK
77-79 Chnistchurch Road,
Ringwood BH24 1DH UK
Inspired South Office Suite,
Easthampstead Road,
Bracknell RG12 1YQ UK

MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

Principal activity
Holding contpany

Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Holding company
Telecommunications
Telecommunications
Telecommunications
Telecommunications
Telecommunications

Leasing
Telecommunications
Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Telecommunications
Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Telecommunications
Telecommunications
Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Holding
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares
Ordinary shares

Ordinary shares

20

%o
100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100

100
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For the year ended 31 December 2020

8.

FIXED ASSET INVESTMENTS (continued)

Mitel Networks Middle East FZ-L1L.C

Mitel Communications
Private Limited

Mitel Czech Republic s.r.o.

Mitel Networks
Pension Trustee Co. Ltd (b)
Mitel Cloud Communications
Sarl (d)

Mitel South Pacific Pty Limited (d)
ShoreTel Australia Pty Ltd (b)
Aastra Telecom Australia Pty Ltd (b)
Mitel Networks (New Zealand)

Limited (b)

Mitel (Far East) Limited (d)

Mitel (Suzhou) Limited (b)

Mitel Communications Technologies
{Beijing) Company
Limited (b}

Registered office
Dubai Internet City
Freezone Building 17,
Office 263, PO Box 500193
Dubai
2nd Floor, A-Wing, Plot no,
19/4 & 27 Kadubisanahalli
village, Varthur Hobli,
Bangalore, Bangalore
Karnataka, India 560103
Hastalska 1072/6,
110 00 Prague 1 - Staré
Mesto, Czech Republic
Castlegate Business Park,
Portskewett. NP26 5YR UK
26-28 Rue Marius Aufan
Levallois Perret 92300
France
Level 6, 32 Walker Street
North Sydney NSW 2060
Australia
Level 6, 32 Walker Street
North Sydney NSW 2060
Australia
Level 6, 32 Walker Street
North Sydney NSW 2060
Australia
Level 4, 204 Thorndon
Quay, Wellington 6011
New Zealand
Room 1501-08, Millennium
City 5 (APM), 418 Kwun
Tong Road, Kwun Tong,
Hong Kong
Rm 707, 2™ Bldg, no 209
Zhuyuan Road, Suzhou
New District, Suzhou
Municipality, Jiangsu
Province, China
C&W Tower, 14#
Jiuxiangiao Road,
Chaoyang District, Beijing
100015, China

MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

Principal activity

Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Pension trustees

Telecommunications

Holding company

Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Holding company

Telecommunications

Telecommunications

Holding Yo
Ordinary shares 100

Ordinary shares 99

Ordinary shares 100

Ordinary shares 100

Ordinary shares 100

Ordinary shares 100

Ordinary shares 100

Ordinary shares 100

Ordinary shares 100

Ordinary shares 100

Ordinary shares 100

Ordinary shares 100

(a) Mitel Networks Corporation, the parent company of Mitel Europe Limited, owns less than 1% of these
p pany P

entities.

(b) These subsidiaries are held indirectly by the company.

{c) Mitel Netherlands BV is owned 929 directly and 8% indirectly.

(d) During 2020, as part of a restructure of the group, Mitel Europe Limited purchased Mitel South Pacific
PTY Limited, Mitel Far East Limited and Mitel Cloud Communications Sarl from MLN UK MidCo
Limited, its immediate parent company. MLN UK MidCo Limited was subsequently dissolved, and Mitel
Networks {International) Limited became the immediate parent company of Mitel Europe Limited.
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2020

9. DEBTORS DUE AFTER MORE THAN ONE YEAR

2020
£7000

Amounts falling due after more than one year
Amount owed by parent undertaking due after more than one year 24,084

2019
£000

24,930

Amounts owed by parent undertakings due after one year are unsecured with a maturity date of 30 Movember

2025, bearing interest at 8% per annum.

10. DEBTORS DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2020 2019
£000 £7000
Amounts falling due within one year

Amounts owed by group undertakings 68,209 15,903
Deferred taxation asset {note 11) 3 3
Corporation tax 46 129
Prepayments 152 457
68,410 16,492

Amounts owed by group undertakings due within one vear are interest free, unsecured and repayable on

demand.

11. DEFERRED TAXATION ASSET

The movement in deferred taxation is as follows:

£000
At 1 January 2020 (3)
Charge to profit and loss account (note 7) -
At 31 December 2020 (3)
2020 2019
£°000 £000
Charge/{credit) to the profit and loss account {note 7} - -
The amounts of deferred taxation provided in the financial statements are as follows:
£000 £7000
Other timing differences 3 3
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2020

12,

13.

14.

CREDITORS: AMOUNTS FALLING DUE WITHIN ONE YEAR

2020 2019
£°000 £°000
Trade creditors 25 494
Amounts owed to group undertakings 13,233 20,264
Other taxation and social security 250 35
Corporation tax - -
Accruals 965 1,737
14,473 22,530

£2,151,000 of amounts owed to group undertakings carries an interest rate of 0.98%. The remainder of amounts
owed are interest-free. All amounts are unsecured and repayable on demand.

CALLED-UP SHARE CAPITAL

Allotted, called-up and

fully-paid
Ordinary share of £1 each No. £2000
At 1 January 2020 2,006 2
Ordinary share issued in the year 1 -
At 31 December 2020 2,007 2

On 23 January 2020, the company issued 1 ordinary share of £1 at a premium of £3,700,000 as consideration
for the entire issued share capital of Mitel South Pacific Pty Limited.

The share premium reserve represents the difference between the par value of the shares issued and the
subscription or issue price.

The profit and loss reserve represents cumulative profits or losses net of dividends paid and other adjustments.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Certain employees receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, being share options in parent
company, MLN TopCo Limited. The required disclosures are included in the MLN TopCo Limited
consolidated financial statements.

Options granted under the plan are generally granted for a fixed number of shares with an exercise price at
least equal to the fair market value of the shares at the date of grant and have a term of ten years.

The expense for equity-settled share-based payments is based on the fair value estimate made on the grant date
using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model for each award and is recognized on a straight-line basis over
the employee service period, which is the vesting period. The company estiates the volatility of its stock for
the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using historical volatility of the company’'s stock.

Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur, through reversal of the previously recognized expense on the
awards that were forfeited during the year.
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MITEL EUROPE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
For the year ended 31 December 2020

15.

PARENT UNDERTAKING AND ULTIMATE CONTROLLING PARTY

In the directors’ opinion, at 31 December 2020, the immediate parent undertaking was Mitel Networks
{International) Limited, a Company registered in the UK. The ultimate parent undertaking and controlling party
is Searchlight Capital Partners IT GP, LLC, a company registered in the USA.

The largest group of undertakings for which these results are consolidated is MLN TopCo Limited, a company
registered in the Cayman Islands. Its registered office address is Intertrust Corporate Services (Cayman)
Limited, 190 Elgin Avenue, George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9005, Cayman Islands.

Copies of the financial statements of MI.N TopCo Limited will be filed at Companies House alongside these
financial statements.
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MLN TOPCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITY AND REVIEW OF THE BUSINESS

The directors present their Annual Report and audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended December
31, 2020.

MLN TopCo Limited and its subsidiaries (together “Mitel” or the “Company”) are a global provider of Cloud and
On-Site business communications and collaboration solutions. Our software product development enables us to help
more than 70 million end users around the world, including more than a million cloud-based Unified Communications
as a Service (UCaaS) subscribers, to seamlessly connect, collaborate and provide innovative solutions to their
customers. Our global customer base leverages Mitel innovation every day in approximately 100 countries.

Mitel’s strategy is built on the principle of putting customers first and providing an exceptional customer experience.
We do that by providing a seamless technology path that will enable businesses to communicate, collaborate and
participate in the digital transformation and application economy that is reshaping business models and competition
globally.

By utilizing our research and development workforce, we believe we are uniquely positioned to offer customers a
comprehensive portfolio of complementary and interoperable communications and collaborations solutions, globally.

With a global geographic footprint, we are structured around three primary geographic markets defined as the
Americas, consisting of the continents of North America and South America; EMEA, which includes the continent of
Europe, the Middle East and Africa; and Asia Pacific, which includes the continent of Asia and the Pacific region,
including Australia and New Zealand.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Mitel operates in a dynamic and highly competitive industry, with changes in both technologies and business models.
We believe that each industry shift is an opportunity to conceive new products, new technologies, or new ideas that
can further transform the industry and our business. Through a broad range of research and development activities,
we seek to identify and address the changing demands of customers, industry trends, and competitive forces.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There are no subsequent events requiring disclosure in these financial statements.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

Key performance indicators that we use to manage our business and evaluate our financial results and operating
performance include: revenues, gross margins, operating income, net income, cash flows from operations, and
Adjusted EBITDA.
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Revenue performance is evaluated from both a segment and geographical perspective by comparing our actual results
against both management forecasts and prior period results. This decline is partially related to the divestitures of the
managed infrastructure services business and hospitality business as outlined in Note 3 to the financial statermnents,
and partially due to sofiness in the markets as a result of a global pandemic.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS (continued)

Gross margin performance is evaluated from a segment perspective by comparing our actual results against both
management forecasts and prior period results. The decline is consistent with the decline in revenues; however it
represents an improvement as a function of revenues, from 60.5% to 63.8% as a result of a change in mix of products
with a higher gross margin percentage.

Cash flow from operations is the key performance indicator with respect to cash flows. As part of monitoring cash
flow from operations, we also monitor our days sales outstanding, our inventory turns and our days expenses in
payables outstanding. Significant efforts were made to improve on these indicators this year, with clear results as
compared to the prior year,

Adjusted EBITDA, a non-GAAP measure, is evaluated by comparing actual results to management forecasts and prior
period results. Consistent with gross margin, the decrease in in line with our decline in revenues, however as a function
of revenues an improvement can be seen year over year,

In addition to the above indicators, from time to time, we also monitor non-financial performance in the following
areas: status of key customer contracts, the achievement of expected milestones of our key R&D projects and the
achievement of our key strategic initiatives.

In an effort to ensure we are creating value for and maintaining strong relationships with our customers, we monitor
customer service levels. With respect to our R&D projects, we measure content, quality and timeliness against project
plans.

CARBON AND ENERGY USE

MLN TopCo Limited has followed the Environmental Reporting Guidelines issued by HM Government in 2019 and
the GHG Reporting Protocol — Corporate Standard for any companies in the group that fall within the scope of the
legislation.

2020
Type of emissions Activity tCOz. % of Total
Direct (Scope 1) Natural Gas 37 2.32%
Subtotal 37 2.32%
Direct (Scope 2) Electricity 1,488 94.13%
Subtotal 1,488 94.13%
Indirect (Scope 3) Electricity - T&D 128 8.10%
Road Travel 56 3.55%
Subtotal 184 11.64%
Total gross emissions (tCOz.) 1,580 100.00%
intensity metric
Average number of employees 309
Tonnes of CO2¢ per employee 5.11

MLN TopCo Limited has used the 2020 UK Government Conversion Factors for Company Reporting.

The chosen intensity measurement ratio is total gross emissions in metric tonnes CO-ze per person.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

CARBON AND ENERGY USE (continued)
Measures to Improve Energy Efficiency

The group has not undertaken any specific energy efficiency measures in 2020 however, following restrictions
introduced by governments to tackle COVID-19, travel has been minimal, with the group fully utilising its own
products to communicate globally.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The directors have considered the principal risks and uncertainties of the company and believe them to include the
following:

Our operating results may be adversely affected by unfavourable economic and market conditions in key
markets, particularly in the United States and Europe.

Challenging economic conditions worldwide, particularly in the United States and in Europe, have, from time to time,
contributed, and may continue to “contribute, to slowdowns in the communications industry at large, as well as in
specific segments and markets in which we operate, resulting in, but not limited to:

- reduced demand for our products;

- increased price competition for our products;

- risk of excess and obsolete inventories;

- risk of supply constraints;

- risk of manufacturing capacity;

- higher overhead costs as a percentage of revenue; and

- higher interest expense. '

The global macroeconomic environment is challenging and volatile. The effect of the COVID-19 pandemic, instability
in the global credit markets, central bank monetary policies, the instability in the geopolitical environment in many
parts of the world and other disruptions, such as changes in energy costs, the United Kingdom’s withdrawal from the
European Union, regulatory and policy uncertainty in the United States, and uncertainty surrounding international
trade arrangements, such as NAFTA, may adversely impact global economic conditions. If global economic and
market conditions, or economic conditions in key markets remain uncertain, we may experience material impacts on
our business, operating results, and financial condition.

We rely on our channel partners (which includes our wholesale distribution channel) for a significant
component of our sales and so disruptions to our partners could have a material adverse effect on our ability
to generate revenues.

Our future success is highly dependent upon establishing and maintaining successful relationships with a variety of
channel partners. A substantial portion of our revenues is derived through and dependent upon our channel partners,
most of which also sell our competitors™ products. In addition, many potential channel partners have established
relationships with our competitors and may not be willing to invest the time and resources required to train their staff
to effectively market our solutions and services. The loss of, or reduction in, sales to these channel partners could
materially reduce our revenues. Our competitors may in some cases be effective in causing our channel partners or
potential channel partners to favour their products or prevent or reduce sales of our solutions. If we fail to maintain
relationships with these channel partners, fail to develop new relationships with channel partners in new markets or
expand the number of channel partners in existing markets, fail to manage, train or provide appropriate incentives to
existing channel partners or if these channel partners are not successful in their sales efforts, sales of our solutions
may decrease and our operating results would suffer.
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STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (continued)

We face competition from many competitors.

The market for our solutions is highly competitive and subject to rapidly changing technologies. This brings a
challenging environment where we may face future competition from companies that do not currently compete in the
business communications market. This includes companies that currently compete in other sectors of the information
technology, communications or software markets, including mobile communications companies or communications
companies that serve residential customers, rather than business customers.

Existing and potential competitors may have greater financial, personnel, research, project management and other
resources derived from their brands or reputations and broader customer bases that are more well-established that
ours. As a result, these competitors may be in a stronger position to respond more effectively to potential acquisitions
and other market opportunities, new or emerging technologies and changes in customer requirements. Some of these
competitors may also have customer bases that are more diversified than ours and therefore may be less affected by
an economic downturn in a particular region. Competitors with greater resources may also be able to offer lower
prices, additional products or services or other ingentives that we do not offer or cannot match.

Additional risks and uncertainties affecting the Company are detailed in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

GOING CONCERN

These consolidated financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2020, have been prepared in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP™) which assume
that the Company will continue in operation for the foreseeable future and will be able to realise its assets and
discharge its liabilities in the normal course of operations.

The directors have no reason to believe that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt about the
ability of Mitel to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the directors have a reasonable expectation that the
company has adequate resources to continue in operational existence for the foreseeable future and, therefore, they
continue to adopt the going concern basis in preparing the report and accounts.

COVID-1%

The COVID-19 pandemic has developed rapidly in 2020, with a significant number of cases globally. Measures taken
to contain the virus, including travel bans and restrictions, quarantines, shelter-in-place orders and business limitations
and shutdowns, have significantly affected economic activity.

At the date of this report, the extent to which the COVID-19 pandemic will continue to impact the Company’s financial
condition and results of operations remains highly uncertain. While the initial effect of the pandemic did have a
relatively negative impact on the Company’s financial results, the effect of the COVID-19 pandemic may not be fully
reflected in the Company’s resuits of operations and overall financial performance until future periods. The extent of
the impact of the COVID-19 global pandemic on the Company’s operational and financial performance will depend
on certain developments, including the duration and spread of the outbreak, efficacy and distribution of a working
vaccine, actions taken to contain the virus or its impact and impact on the Company’s suppliers, customers, partners,
resellers and employees, all of which are uncertain and cannot be predicted.



MLN TOPCO LIMITED

STRATEGIC REPORT (continued)

SECTION 172 STATEMENT

Section 172 requires that “a director of a company must act in the way he considers, in good faith, would be most
likely to promote the success of the company for the benefit of its members as a whole, and in doing so have regard
(amongst other matters) to:

(a) the likely consequences of any decision in the longterm;
(b) the interests of the company's employees;
(c) the need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and othets;
(d) the impact of the company's operations on the community and the environment;
(e) the desirability of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and
{f) the need to act fairly as between members of the company™,
Long term decision making

The success of our business is dependent on the support of all of our stakeholders. Building positive relationships with
stakeholders that share our values is important to us and working together towards shared goals assists us in delivering
long-term sustainable success.

Reports are regularly made to the Board about the strategy, performance and key decisions taken which provides the
Board with assurance that proper consideration is given to stakeholder interests in decision-making. The Board is well
informed about the views of stakeholders through the regular reporting on stakeholder views and it uses this
information to assess the impact of decisions on each stakeholder group as part of its own decision-making process.

Details of the key stakeholders and how we engage with them are set out below.
Our Key Stakeholders

Colleagues

QOur people are key to our success and we want them {o be successful individually and as a team. There are many ways
we engage with and listen to our people including a regular dialogue with employees through our intranet, email
communication, team briefings and regular meetings. Matters of current interest and concern to the business are
regularly discussed with employees at departmental, inter-department and “all employee™ meetings. The company
operates various incentive and recognition schemes including bonus schemes and an annual incentive plan based on
the group’s performance.

The company actively promotes the employment of disabled people and maintains close links with disablement bodies.
When selecting candidates for employment, the company concentrates on their abilities and not their disabilities.
Employees who become disabled during their employment with the company are considered for alternative
employment where necessary and are provided with medical counselling,

Customers

Our ambition is to deliver best-in-class service to trade customers. We build strong lasting relationships with our trade
customers and spend considerable time with them to understand their needs and views and listen to how we can
improve our offer and service for them.

We regularly seek to introduce new products, features, applications and services to address the requirements of our
customers. We put the customer at the centre of everything we do. Mitel’s history of success in software-based cloud
and enterprise communications sclutions has provided us with the foundation for continued innovation. In recent
years, we have increasingly invested in cloud-based R&D to support our rapidly growing cloud business. Our R&D
personnel are skilled with deep domain expertise in the diverse areas of telecommunications, [P networking, unified
communications, Contact Centre solutions software and vertical applications. We work to continuously improve our
R&D efforts through operational measurement, adoption of best practices, effective partmerships and investment in
our people.
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SECTION 172 STATEMENT (continued)
Our Key Stakeholders (continued)

Customers {continued)

As of December 31, 2020, we had approximately 800 employees working in our R&D department on cloud and
enterprise solutions. Our global R&D workforce is located predominantly in North America, Europe, and India.

Suppliers

We build strong relationships with our suppliers to develop mutually beneficial and lasting partnerships. The Board
recognises that relationships with suppliers are important to the Group’s long-term success and is briefed on supplier
feedback and issues on a regular basis.

Communities

We engage with the communities in which we operate to build trust and understand the local issues that are important
to them. Key areas of focus include how we can support local causes and issues, create opportunities to recruit and
develop local people and help to look after the environment. We partner with local charities and organisations at a site
level to raise awareness and funds. The impact of decisions on the environment both locally and nationally is
considered with such considerations as the use of and disposal of plastic and how this might be minimised.

Business Conduct

We promote a culture based on ethical values and behaviours which are embedded in our systems and controls and
include whistleblowing, anti-corruption and modem slavery policies. All employees are required to complete an
annual Code of Business Conduct course.

Government and regulators

We engage with the government and regulators through a range of industry consultations, meetings and conferences.
The Board is updated on legal and regulatory developments and takes these into account when considering future
actions.

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

irector
Francois Dekker



MLN TOPCO LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT

The directors present their Annual Report and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year ended
December 31, 2020.

ACCOUNTING PERIOD

These consclidated financial statements are for the year ended December 31, 2020. The comparative results are for
the year ended December 31, 2019,

DIVIDENDS

No dividend was paid during the year (year ended December 31, 2019 - $nil) and no dividends have been paid or
proposed after the balance sheet date.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the company, who served throughout the financial period and subsequently, are as follows.

Francois Dekker
Nicolo Zanotto

DIRECTORS’ INDEMNITIES

The company has made qualifying third-party indemnity provisions for the benefit of its directors which were made
during the year and remain in force at the date of this report.

FUTURE DEVELOPMENTS

Details of future developments can be found in the Strategic Report on page x

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There are no subsequent events requiring disclosure in these financial statements.
RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

Refer to 5.172 report in the Strategic Report.

DISABLED EMPLOYEES

Refer to 5.172 report in the Strategic Report.

EMPLOYEE CONSULATATION
Refer to 5.172 report in the Strategic Report.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The main financial risks affecting the Company are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, credit risk and
concentration risk. More details about these risks can be found in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.



MLN TOPCO LIMITED

DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continued)

AUDITOR

Each of the persons who is a director at the date of approval of this report confirms that:

e 5o far as each of the directors is aware, there is no relevant audit information of which the Company’s auditor
is unaware; and

* each of the directors has taken all the steps that they ought to have taken as a director to make themselves
aware of any relevant audit information and to establish that the company’s auditor is aware of that
information.

Approved by the Board of Directors
and signed on behalf of the Board

irector
Francois Dekker



- Deloitte LLP
e OI e 1600-100 Queen Street
9 Ottawa ON K1P 578

Canada

Tel: 613-236-2442
Fax: 613-236-2195
www.deloitte.ca

Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of MLN TopCo Ltd.

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of MLN TopCo Ltd. (the “"Company™), which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at December 31, 2020, and the consolidated statements
of operations, comprehensive incoeme {loss), changes in sharehelders’ equity and cash flows for the
year ended December 31, 2020, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a
summary of significant accounting policies (collectively referred to as the “financial statements”).

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements of the Company for the year ended
December 31, 2020, are prepared, in all material respects, in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America ("US GAAP™).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian generally accepted auditing standards
(“Canadian GAAS”). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Staternents section of our report. We are independent of
the Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial
statements in Canada, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in
accordance with US GAAP, and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to
enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsibie for assessing the Company’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
process.

Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Qur objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’'s report
that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance Is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with Canadian GAAS will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users
taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with Canadian GAAS, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.



We also:

+ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misreprasentations, or the override
of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal contro! relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

s Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

¢+ Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based con the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events
or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our cenclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to
cease to continue as a going concern.

» Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

s Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Company to express an opinion on the financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

Other Information

Management is responsible for the other inforrnation. The other information comprises the
informatian, other than the financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon, in the Strategic and
Directors’ Report.

Our opinion on the financial staternents does not cover the other information and we do not express
any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our audit of the financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other infarmation identified above and, in doing s0, consider whether
the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, or octherwise appears to be materially misstated.

We obtained the Strategic and Directors’ Report prior to the date of this auditor’s report. If, based on
the work we have performed on this other information, we conclude that there is a materia!
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact in this auditor’'s report. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

Aelettc (LF

Chartered Professional Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants
June 14, 2021



MLN TopCo Ltd.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(in U.S. dollars, millions, except share amounts)

December 31, Diecember 31,
2020 2019
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash eQUIVALENTS v v e st are e e rar e et s s e enene s ner e h) 52.5 $ 26.6
Accounts receivable (net of allowance for doubtful accounts of $9.4 and $11.1).eccoiicrieenen. 135.7 156.4
LIV EIEOTIES oottt rmre st et er st et reer e nem s e re st e e et r bt an s eht s 10 st n v e s 54.8 67.6
Other current asSELS {TIOTE 4 ). ittt e et ee et s estesrecbresresareea e e eren s srmeemenennesrsnennns 59.8 61.8
302.8 3124
Deferred tax asset (IOLE L5) ..o re et e st e s se e s e s e s e sr e e e 49.8 43.8
Property and equipment (Net) {NOLE 5) oo e e 64.0 55.6
Operating 1ease righi-0f-USE BSSELS .vvvviviiricrvreierre v rrrn e s s s sres e e s s e s s eressaesrerrscras o esgeinebeneesaeeseeas 66.8 77.7
[dentifiable intangible assets (N8t (IOLE B)..euiir i et rne e s 898.0 1,119.2
GOOAWILL (T1OTE 7}oeeveevreenrieeeriertrresrereesna e smr e e se st e s e e sresrme et s see s s eame s sms sree st ra s st s sheshm s beansamsaobanas 767.6 802.5
Other non-current assets {NOTE B) ....vvvviiireer et ss e s e e smr e e s ne e s e arne srne s e rene 64.7 50.8

3 2,213.7 § 2,462.0

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (N01& ) iovvivireiiire e v e $ 233.7 5 2294
Current portion of deferTed rEVEIUE ..o iive s rs e s ens e e s s s s e reem e en 123.6 131.7
Current portion of operating lease labilities ......ococviiiiiinii e e 19.4 224
Current portion of long-term debt (note 10) ... 12.8 12.6
389.5 396.1

Non-current portion 0f deferred TEVENUE ..o v rersrere s s s e ernaseeee s saasaeens 43.4 41.3
Non-curtent portion of operating lease Habilities ..., 73.1 72.8
Long-1ermm debt (MO8 10) .eee i verrreeresr e ss e vsr e te e e nr e s er e be s e s e e sme et esatsoeameeanesaeneenneeoennareanenanssnras 1,336.5 1,364.7
Deferred tax HabIlity (TMOTE 15 oot ceeee et rer s s e s e s ee e e e s me e easeeam e be et nee et 43.2 59.8
Pension HabilIty (MO8 16} .. . oo ret et rme e e re s rer e san e e st mea s me e s rrem s e e 92.7 74.3
Other non-current Habilities ... oottt et ne e oo sere e e 69.6 58.6
2,048.0 2,067.6

Commitments, guarantees and contingencies (note {1)
Shareholders’ equity:
Ordinary share capital (outstanding: 134.7 million and 134.7 million} and additional paid-in

capital — (note 12) 681.8 675.9
ACCUMULALED GETICIE ..iiitiiie ittt rs st st b e bbb babba bbb e sarsasnsenssssassrssnssrrsrerserrrrtrrnre (467.2) (260.1)
Accumulated other compreRensive JOSS oo et esc e rieee e ear e see e reens {48.9) (21.4)

165.7 3944

$ 22137 % 2,462.0

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements)



MLN TopCo Ltd.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(in U.S. dollars, millions)

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

REVETIUES . vevvve e veteesieresestecasstes st eesanssessenssabessssstasannssasssson stassemetassrarseonmsasstesnenensnnreesn B 939.0 $ 1,067.5
COSE OF FEVEIIUES 1oevenvierrrireerinr ettt ess st e et nar e snnns 339.9 4218
GIOSS TIATE I 1 vereveieresarersneeasesermnesssasescranessrerseesressoueeasesassaserasnenssessnessanessessaseranssnsesssnes 599.1 645.7
Expenses:
Selling, general and adminiStrative . ..o veeern e 360.9 3979
Research and development. ..o iciieencee e 106.4 124.5
Restructuring, inlegration and acquisition-related costs (note 13} .ooooeeee 26.4 18.8
Amortization of acquisition-related intangible assets ........ociiiiiiiiinisiinieniea, 182.0 187.2
675.7 758.4
OPEIALINE LOSS 1inriitiieseirctesii st ects et sresecu e srae e srsesn e e rrsrn s e s nnssresrsns sarerassensas srees (76.6) (112.7)

INEETEST EXPEIISE Loviiiiiiictiiice et rre e st e s st st e s st sa et e s (116.8) (122.8)
Oher INCOME (EXPENSEY . .evviesrisrevisseeetrrieeseateres st esassrestasaceseeraesmssasestamsensmnas st annassenss (19.9) (7.1}

L 0SS DETOre INCOME (AXCS..ccivirierieeiirerire e i resseessanrressrrsssnren s raeassess srnessenressannensarerserse 2133 (242.6)
Current income tax recovery (expense} (Note 15} ..o (7.4) (8.7}
Deferred income tax recovery {(expense) (N0t8 13 ). oreieiiireeiecreee s eresie s e 13.6 36.9

NEL 0SS 1enrirerrinrirn s et be s er st e e se e e e s s et nn e ee D (207.1) % (214.4)

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements)



MLN TopCo Ltd.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS)
(in U.S. dollars, millions)

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Net loss.. PP URURPRPPRY. 207.1) $ (214.4)
Other comprchenswe income (loss)
Foreign currency translation adjustments................ 18.5 34
Pension liability adjustments, net of tax recovery (expense) of $1 5 and (SI 3)
(note 16)... et (28.6) 11.6
Change in fair value of derwauves desngnated as cash ﬂow hedges, net of tax
recovery of $6.0 and $6.7 (note 17)... (17.4) (19.6)
(27.5) {4.6)
Comprehensive NCOME (LOSSh .ot s e ne e see st e e ee B 2346) § (219.0)

{The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements)



MLN TopCo Litd.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

(in U.S. dollars, millions)

Common
Shares and Accumulated
Additional Other Total
Paid-in Accumulated Comprehensive Shareholders’
Capital Deficit Income (Loss) Equity
Balance at December 31,2018............. § 6726 § 437 § (16.8) 610.1
Issuance of shares {note 12}....c.ccvvirennene 0.8 — — 0.8
Stock-based compensation (note 12) ...... 2.5 — — 2.5
Comprehensive income (1088).ovviveeenen. — (214.4) (4.6) (219.0)
Balance at December 31,2019............. § 675.9 (260.1) % 21.4) 394.4
Stock-based compensation (note 12} ...... 5.9 — — 5.9
Comprehensive income (1088)...coceemennen. — (207.1) (27.5) (234.6)
Balance at December 31, 2020.............. § 681.8 (467.2) $ (48.9) 165.7

(The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Conselidated Financial Statements)



MLN TopCo Ltd.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

{in U.S. dollars, millions)

CASH PROVIDED BY (USED IN)
Operating activities:

Net loss... .

Ad]ustments to reconmle net loss to net cash provnded by operatmg activities:
Amortization and depreciation....
Stock-based compensation...

Deferred income tax expense (recovsry)

Amortization of debt [syue COSLS ot

Loss on divestitures (net) (note 3)...

Non-cash MOVeMents N ProviSIONS ..o v eevereniereescsessesesseeresreeeneeseeees
Change in non-cash operating assets and llabllmes net (note 14) ......................

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities........ociueeerveeremieciin e ercereee e
[nvesting activities:
Additions to property, equipment and identifiable intangible assets......covvinees
Proceeds from divestiture (NOte 3) .oeeverierie et et et
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities ....ccvvereerinreirsnevsinrsresrrnisssessssersssens

Financing activities:
Repayments of the first lien term 1oan ...
Borrowings under the revolving credit facility ..
Repayments of the revolving credit facility ...
Repayment of finance lease liabilities and other long -term debt ........................
Proceeds from issuance of common shares (Note 12)..vvviicie v ierinereveneerereenns

Net cash provided by (used in} financing activities......ccoccovveriicvie i
Effect of exchange rate changes on cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash............

[ncrease (decrease) in cash equivalents and restricted cash.....ccovvevcvveevice e cvrenr s
Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash. beginning of period.........................

Total cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash, end of period......comvececerincincnne
Less: restricted cash, end of period. ...

Cash and cash equivalents, end of Period .....cvvvrvieime vt sereeee

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
.8 207.1) § (214.4)
211.5 216.6
5.9 2.5
(13.6) (36.9)
6.3 5.8
6.1 —
3.6 35
6.6 (17.6)
19.3 (40.5)
{23.5) (23.6)
63.6 —_—
40.1 (23.6)
(11.2y (11.2)
59.0 171.0
{82.0) (123.0)
2.1) (2.5)
— 0.8
(36.3) 35.1
2.3 (0.5)
25.4 (29.5)
27.9 57.4
53.3 27.9
(0.8) (1.3)
3 52.5 $ 26.6

{(Note 14 contains supplemental cash flow information)

{The accompanying notes are an integral part of these Consolidated Financial Statements)



MLN TopCo Ltd.
NOTES TO TIIE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(in U.S. dollars, millions, except for share amounts)

1. BACKGROUND AND NATURE OF OPERATIONS
MLN TopCo Ltd. (*Mitel” or the “Company™) was incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands on April 19, 2018,

On November 30, 2018, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of Mitel Networks Corporation (NASDAQ:MITL,
TSX:MNW), a global provider of unified communications hardware, software and services through direct, indirect and distribution
channels, in exchange for total consideration of $1,934.5. In conjunction with the acquisition, the Company completed a financing of
senior debt, as described in note 10.

2. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
o) Basis of Presentation

These Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America (“GAAP™).

b) Basis of Conselidation

The Consolidated Financial Statements include the accounts of the Company and of its subsidiary companies. [ntercompany
transactions and balances have been eliminated on consolidation.

¢} Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company’s Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make
estimates and assumptions that atfect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenues and expenses during the reporting periods.

Estimates and assumptions are used for, but not limited to, the determination of the fair values of assets and liabilities acquired
through acquisitions, the fair value of investments, allowance for doubtful accounts, net realizable value of inventory, goodwill
impairment assessments, estimated useful lives of property. equipment and intangible assets, accruals, warranty costs, sales rebates
and returns, pension liability, contingencies, restructuring, integration and acquisition-related costs, income taxes, the determination of
the incremental borrowing rate and lease term for operating leases, and the amortization period of contract assets, as well as certain
estimates related to revenue recognition, as described in note 2(e). When making estimates and assumptions, the Company considered
the impact of the novel coronavirus ("COVID-19"). The Company believes that the accounting estimates are appropriate after giving
consideration to the increased uncertainties, including both the severity and duration of the COVID-19 pandemic.

Estimates and assumptions are reviewed periodically and the effects of revisions are reflected in the Consoelidated Financial
Statements in the period that they are determined. Actual results and outcomes could differ from these estimates.

d) Foreign Currency Translation

The parent company’s functional currency is the U.S. dollar and the Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company are
prepared with the U.S. dollar as the reporting currency. Assets and liabilities of foreign operations with a functional currency other
than the U.S. dollar are translated from foreign currencies into U.S. dollars at the exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date
while revenue and expense items are translated at the average exchange rate for the period. The resulting unrealized gains and losses
are included as part of the cumulative foreign currency translation adjustrnent that is reported as part of other comprehensive income
(loss).

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in currencies foreign to the functional currency of each entity are translated into the
functional currency using exchange rates in effect at the balance sheet date. All non-monetary assets and liabilities are translated at the
exchange rates prevailing at the date the assets were acquired, or the liabilities incurred. Revenue and expense items are translated at
the average exchange rate for the period. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the translation of these accounts are
included in the determination of net income for the period. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company recorded a foreign
exchange loss of $20.7, which is included in other income (expense) on the consolidated statements of operations (year ended
December 31, 2019 — foreign exchange loss of $6.9).



¢) Revenue Recognition and Contract Costs
Revenue Recognition

The Company generates revenues primarily from the sale of unified communications systems and related services (collectively,
a “Solution™). A typical Solution consists of a combination of [P phones, switches, software applications and support. A Solution may
be deployed on the customer’s premise (a unified communications or “UC” Solution) or deployed in a cloud environment and billed
on a monthly basis (a unified-communications-as-a-service or “UCaaS™ Solution).

UC Solution Revenue
The Company sells UC Solutions primarily through channel partners and distributors.

For revenue generated through channel partners, a typical sale is supported by a customer contract, based on standard Mitel
terms and conditions. The contract contains a standard discount against a list price for products and services and generally includes
limited rebates and rights of return. As such, the transaction price for a sale to a channel partner is based on the standard pricing
provided under the contract.

For revenue generated through distributors, a typical sale is supported by a customer contract, either based on standard Mitel
terms and conditions or, in certain cases, a negotiated set of terms and conditions. A typical contract contains a standard discount
against a list price for products and services and generally includes rebates as well as stock rotation or other return rights. To
determine the transaction price for a sale to a distributor, the Company considers the up-front sale price at standard pricing, less
estimates for rebates and returns. Estimates for rebates and returns are based on the Company s historical experience for such
programs.

Payment terms for sales to channel partners generally range from 30 to 90 days. Payment terms for sales to distributors
generally range from 30 to 60 days.

A typical UC Solution consists of the following:

+  An IP-based unified communications platform, which consists of software, either embedded in hardware that the
Company sells, or operating on hardware provided by the customer

s [P-based devices, including wired or wireless desktop phones
+  Additional value-added software applications, which operate with our platforms

«  Post-contract support, which includes software assurance (software support as well as when and if available
upgrades)

The Company considers each of the above to be a distinct good or service and as such, accounts for each as a separate
performance obligation. The Company allocates the transaction price to each of the performance obligations based on a relative stand-
alone selling price basis. As most sales are completed with standard discounting against a list price, the relative stand-alone selling
price generally consists of the list price less a standard discount.

The Company recognizes revenue for performance obligations as follows:

Product Revenue — Hardware and Software

The Company recognizes hardware (platforms and devices) and software revenue when control of the product has transferred to
the customer. Control is considered transferred generally when the customer has the risk and rewards of ownership of the preduct,
which for hardware, is generally when the hardware is shipped by Mitel and for software. when the software has been provided ot
otherwise made available to the customer.

Post-Contract Support

Post-contract support consists primarily of software assurance revenue where the Company provides software upgrades on a
when and if available basis and software support for a fixed annual fee under contracts that range from one to five years. Revenue
from post-contract support is recognized ratably over the contractual period as the customer simultanecusly receives and consumes the
benefits over time.

UCaa$8 Solution Revenue



The Company primarily sells UCaa8 Solutions directly to end customers under a monthly recurring billing model. A typical
UCaa8 Solution is sold under standard Mitel terms and conditions, which include a fixed monthly payment, under 30-day payment
terms, for services over an initial term of three vears. UCaa$S Solutions consist of:

e  Theright to use an IP-based unified communications platform and additional value-added software applications hosted
by Mitel over the term of the contract

¢  The right to use [P-based devices over the term of the contract
¢  Technical support over the term of the contract
*  Voice and data telecommunication services

The Company does not consider these performance obligations distinct in the context of the contract with the customer as the
customer views the contract as providing a single monthly unified communications service. As a result, the Company has grouped the
goods and services together as a single performance obligation and considers the performance obligation to be fulfilled over the life of
the contract. Revenue is then recognized ratably as monthly services are being provided as the customer simultaneously receives and
consumes the benefits over time.

Federal Universal Service Fund and other regulatory fees are assessed by various governmental authorities in connection with
the services the Company provides to customers and are included in cost of revenues in the consolidated statements of operations. In
many cases, the Company will separately bill and collect these regulatory fees from customers. as allowed by the governmental
authorities, and these are recorded in revenue in the consolidated statements of operations.

Disaggregation of revenues

The Company’s revenues are earned as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
UC — products i 3 374.8 $ 480.0
UC — services’™ e 244.0 252.3
L - O 320.2 335.2
3 939.0 $ 1,067.5

(1) Included in UC services for the year ended December 31, 2020 is $9.6 of adjustments relating to purchase accounting (year
ended December 31, 2019 — $29.7). In accordance with the fair value provisions applicable to the accounting for business
combinations, acquired deferred revenue relating to acquisitions is recorded on the opening balance sheet of the acquired
company at an amount that is generally lower than the historical carrying value. Although this purchase accounting requirement
has no impact on the Company s business or cash flow, it results in a deferred revenue balance lower than historical book value
and adversely impacts the Company’s revenue in the reporting periods following the acquisition.

The Company has disaggregated its revenues based on the nature of the revenue streams. This disaggregation is consistent with
how the Company’s chief operating decision maker, its CEQ, regularly reviews the financial performance of the Company. UC
product revenue consists of hardware and sofiware and is recognized at the point in time when control has passed to the customer, as
described above. UC service revenue is recorded over time as the service is provided. UCaa$8 revenue, which consists of services
provided under a monthly, recurring billing model, is recognized over time.

Significant estimates and judgments relating 1o revenue recognition

For the UC business, in determining the estimated total transaction price, the Company estimates levels of rebates and returns
(including stock rotation) based on the Company’s historical experience. In cases where the Company enters into a significant new
customer or distributor agreement, significant judgment may be required to estimate rebate and return levels based on the Company’s
historical experience with customers and distributors with similar terms. In addition, when allocating the total transaction price
amongst performance obligations, the Company estimates the relative selling price of the performance obligations based on its
historical experience. While this area may require some judgment, in most cases the performance obligations of a contract are satisfied
in the same reporting period, with the exception of post-contract support, which is generally less than 10% of the total contract price.

For the UCaa$ business, the Company estimates the total contract period based on historical experience. Any initial discount,
rebate or free period is considered as the Company estimates the total transaction price of the contract.



Contract Costs

The Company defers incremental costs to obtain as well as incremental costs to fulfill a contract with a customer for both UC
Solutions and UCaaS Solutions, provided the incremental costs are expected to be recovered. These costs are amortized as the related
revenue is recognized. The Company has elected to apply a practical expedient under the guidance and expenses costs to obtain a
contract as incurred if the amortization period would have been one year or less. Unamortized deferred contract costs are recorded as
other non-current assets in the consolidated balance sheets and totaled $51.6 at December 31, 2020 (December 31, 2019 — $39.9).

UC Solution contract costs

For UC Solution contracts, the Company's incremental costs to obtain the customer contracts consist primarily of commissions
to the Company’s internal salesforce, where the commissions were incurred directly as the result of sales achieved. Incremental costs
to obtain the contract are generally incurred in the same period as the performance obligation is satisfied, with the exception of post-
contract support. As a result, the Company defers incremental contract costs allocated to post-contract support and amortizes the costs
over the period of post-contract support.

For UC Selution contracts, costs to fulfill are generally discrete for each performance obligation and incurred in the same period
as the refated performance obligation is satisfied. As a result, the Company has not deferred any costs to fulfill relating to UC Solution
contracts.

UCaaS$ Solution contract costs

For UCaa$S Solutien contracts, the Company’s incremental costs to obtain the customer contracts consist of commissions to the
Company’s internal salesforce, where the commissions were incurred directly as the result of sales achieved, as well as incentives paid
to external agents for obtaining contracts. For UCaa$8 Solution contracts, ¢osts to fulfill generally consist of customer activation costs.
The Company defers both incremental contract costs and costs to fulfill for UCaaS Solution contracts and amortizes the costs over the
estimated term of the contract, plus any expected renewal periods.

Balance sheet accounts relating to contracts with customers

The Company’s significant balance sheet accounts relating to contracts with customers are as follows:

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2016

ACCOUNES FECEIVADLE. i e ) 135.7 5 156.4
Contract assets included in other current assets.......ovvveevvemevemvierreenns 6.9 7.9
Contract assets included in other non-current assets ..ovvveiiceeirnnns 51.6 399
Current portion of deferred revenue .......cocovvvecveeeen. 123.6 131.7

Non-current portion of deferred revenue 43.4 41.3

The increase in contract assets during 2020 is due to the deferral of incremental costs to obtain and fulfill contracts since the
acquisition, as described in note 1. The decreases in accounts receivable and deferred revenue are due to lower revenue.

Remaining Performance Obligations

The aggregate amount of total transaction price allocated to performance obligations in contracts existing as of the balance
sheet date, which are wholly or partially unsatisfied as of the end of the reporting period, and the expected time frame for
satisfaction of those wholly or partially unsatisfied performance obligations, are as follows:

2029t 4.1
2025 and thereafter ..o vveiicccre e 1.7

Deferred revenue, December 31. 2020 ..o 5 167.0




The Company recognized $131.7 of revenue during the year ended December 31, 2020 that related to contract liabilities
included in the opening balance of the current portion of deferred revenue (year ended December 31, 2019 - $114.7).

J) Cash and Cash Equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are highly liquid investments that have terms to maturity of three months or less at the time of
acquisition, and generally consist of cash on hand and investment-grade marketable securities. Cash equivalents are carried at
amortized cost, which approximates their fair value. At December 31, 2020, the Company had cash of $52.0 and cash equivalents of
$0.5 (December 31, 2019 — cash of $25.0 and cash equivalents of $1.6).

g) Restricted Cash

Restricted cash represents cash provided to support letters of credit outstanding and to support certain of the Company’s credit
facilities or other obligations. Restricted cash is presented within other current assets on the consolidated balance sheets,

) Allowance for Doubtful Accounts

The allowance for doubtful accounts represents the Company’s best estimate of probable losses that may result from the
inability of its customers to make required payments. Reserves are established and maintained against estimated losses based upon
historical loss experience, past due accounts, and specific account analysis, The Company regularly reviews the level of allowances
for doubtful accounts and adjusts the fevel of allowances as needed. Consideration is given to accounts past due as well as other risks
in the current portion of the accounts. If there is a deterioration of a major customer’s creditworthiness or actual defaults are higher
than historical experience, the estimate of the recoverability of amounts due could be adversely affected.

i) Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost (calculated on a first-in, first-out basis, which is approximated by standard cost) and
net realizable value. [nventory is written down for estimated obsolescence equal to the difference between the cost of inventory and
the net realizable value, based upon an aging analysis of the inventory on hand, specific known inventory-related risks and
assumptions about future demand. Substantially all inventory consists of finished goods, primarily manufactured by contract
manufacturers.

Jj) Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are initially recorded at cost. Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis over the anticipated useful
lives of the assets. Estimated lives range from two to ten years for equipment. Amortization of leasehold improvements is computed
using the shorter of the remaining lease term or the useful life of the asset, generally five years.

The Company performs reviews for the impairment of property and equipment whenever events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. In assessing the impairment, the Company compares projected
undiscounted net cash flows associated with the related asset or group of assets over their estimated remaining useful life against their
carrying amounts, If the projected undiscounted net cash flows are not sufficient to recover the carrying value of the assets, the assets
are written down to their estimated fair values based on expected discounted cash flows. Changes in the estimates and assumptions
used in assessing projected cash flows could materially affect the results of management’s evaluation.

Assets leased on terms that transfer substantially all of the benefits and risks of ownership to the Company are accounted for as
finance leases, as though the asset had been purchased outright and a liability incurred. All other leases are accounted for as operating
leases.

Where a lease is determined to be an operating lease. the Company records an operating lease right-of-use asset and current and
non-current operating lease liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets. The right-of-use asset represents the Company’s right to use
an underlying asset for the lease term and lease liabilities represent the Company’s obligation to make lease payments arising from the
lease. Operating lease right-of-use assets and liabilities are recognized at commencement date based on the present value of lease
payments over the lease term. As most of the operating leases do not provide an implicit rate, the Company generally uses its
incremental borrowing rate based on the estimated rate of interest for collateralized borrowing over a similar term of the lease
payments at commencement date. The lease terms may include options to extend or terminate the lease when it is reasonably certain
that the Company will exercise that option. Lease expense for lease payments is recognized on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

The Company has elected not to recognize right-of-use assets and lease obligations for its short-term leases, which are defined
as leases with an expected initial term of 12 months or less. The Company’s short-term leases were not material for the years ended



December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019. The Company has elected to consider both the lease and non-lease components as a
single lease component.

The Company capitalizes qualifying internal-use software development costs that are incurred during the application
development stage, provided that mariagement with the relevant authority authorizes and commits to the funding of the project, it is
probable the project will be completed, and the software will be used to perform the function intended. Costs related to preliminary
project activities and post implementation activities are expensed as incurred. Capitalized internal-use software development costs are
included in property and equipment and are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. For the year ended
December 31, 2020, the Company capitalized $7.6 of internal-use software development costs. The carrving value of internal-use
software development costs at December 31, 2020 was $7.6.

k) Identifiable Intangible Assets and Goodwill

Intangible assets include patents, trademarks, customer relationships and acquired technology. Amortization is provided on a
straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the assets. | he Company evaluates intangible assets for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability is assessed
based on the carrying value of the asset and the undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and the eventual disposal of
the asset. An impairment loss is recognized when the carrying amount is not recoverable,

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the estimated fair value of net tangible and intangible assets acquired
in business combinations. Goodwill is not amortized, but is subject to annual impairment tests, or more frequently if circumstances
indicate that it is more likely than not that the fair value of the reporting unit is below its carrying amount. The Company performs its
annual goodwill impairment test on October 1 of each year.

1) Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses foreign currency forward contracts to manage the impact of currency fluctuations on foreign currency
receivables and payables (fair value hedges). The Company also hedges cash flows by entering into interest rate swap agreements to
manage the impact of interest rate changes on a portion of its forecasted interest payments on its variable rate debt (cash flow hedges).

For derivative instruments that qualify for hedge accounting (cash flow hedges), gains or losses for the effective portion of the
hedge are initially reported as a separate component of other comprehensive income (loss) and subsequently recorded in income when
the hedged item affects income or when the hedge is no longer deemed etfective.

For fair value hedges and other derivative instruments that do not qualify for hedge accounting, the derivative instrument is
recorded at fair market value, with subsequent changes in fair market value recorded in other income (expense) during the period of
change.

m} Income Taxes

[ncome taxes are accounted for using the asset and liability method. Under this approach, deferred tax assets and liabilities are
determined based on differences between the carrying amounts and the tax basis of assets and liabilities and are measured using
enacted tax rates and laws. Deferred tax assets are recognized only to the extent that it is more likely than not that the future tax assets
will be realized in the future.

The Company calculates certain tax liabilities based on the likely outcome of uncertain tax positions (*UTPs”) and records this
amount as an expense during the year in which UTPs are identified. Each UTP is remeasured each period to reflect any changes in
facts and circumstances until the UTP is resolved. The Company also records interest and penalties associated with these UTPs. The
Company classifies penalties and accrued interest related to income tax liabilities in income tax expense.

n) Research and Development

Research costs are charged to expense in the periods in which they are incurred. Software development costs related to software
for external sale, primarily related to the Company’s UC business, are expensed, as the costs incurred for the period from
techniological feasibility, as defined under software company specific guidance, to release is not material. Software development costs
related to internal-use software, including software developed for the Company’s UCaaS business, are capitalized as described under
note 2(j) above.

o) Defined Benefit Pension Plans

Pension expense under defined benefit pension plans is actuarially determined using the projected benefit method, and
management’s best estimate assumptions. Pension plan assets are valued at fair value. The excess of any cumulative net actuarial gain
(loss) aver ten percent of the greater of the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of plan assets at the beginning of the year is



amortized over the average remaining service life of its members, or in the case where the plan no longer grants service, over the
average remaining life expectancy of its members. Based on the annual valuation, the under-funded status of the defined benefit
pension plans is recognized as a liability on the consolidated balance sheets, with an offsetting adjustment made to accumulated other
comprehensive income (loss). The Company measures its plan assets and obligations at the balance sheet date.

The discount rate assumption used reflects prevailing rates available on high-quality, fixed-income debt instruments. The
assumption for long-term rate of return is based on the yield available on long-dated government and corporate bonds at the
measurement date with an allowance for outperformance based on historical returns of each asset class.

The service cost component of pension and post-retirement costs is recorded in the same line as the other compensation costs for
the relevant employee while non-service components are classified as other income {(expense). outside of operating income (loss). The
Company’s net periodic cost is disclosed in note 16.

P} Stock-Based Compensation

In connection with the acquisition of Mitel Networks Corporation, as described in note I, the Company agreed that all unvested
Restricted Stock Units {*RSUs™) of Mitel Networks Corporation would be cancelled in exchange for the right to receive a cash
payment from the Company in an amount equal to the transaction price per share following the date such Company RSU would have
vested in accordance with its terms, generally subject to the holder’s continued employment through such date. The Company assessed
the portion of the fair value of the RSUs that related to pre-combination service based on the initial vesting period of the RSUs. Asa
result, on November 30, 2018, the date of acquisition, $21.9 was recorded as a liability in accounts payable and other accrued
liabilities relating to pre-combination service, with the remaining balance to be expensed on a graded-vesting basis over the remaining
service period. For the year ended December 31, 2020, $2.9 was expensed for current service for RSUs {year ended December 2019 —
$9.4). An additional $1.5 is expected to be expensed over 2021 and 2022.

The Company grants stock options to employees of the Company for a fixed number of shares with an exercise price at least
equal to fair market value of the shares at the date of grant.

Stock-based compensation expense for stock options is based on the fair value estimate made on the grant date using the Black-
Scholes option-pricing model for each award and is recognized on a straight-line basis over the employee service period, which is the
vesting period. The Company estimates the volatility of its stock for the Black-Scholes option-pricing model using volatility of
comparable public companies.

Forfeitures are accounted for as they occur, through reversal of the previously recognized expense on the awards that were
forfeited during the year.

g) Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Other comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealized gains and losses excluded from the consolidated statements of
operations. These unrealized gains and losses consist of foreign currency translation adjustments, which are not adjusted for income
taxes since they relate to indefinite investments in foreign subsidiaries, cash flow hedges, and changes in the unfunded status of
defined benefit pension plans. Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) at December 31, 2020 consisted of unrealized gains
on foreign currency translation adjustments of $22.0 (December 31, 2019 — unrealized gains of $3.5), unrealized losses on cash flow
hedges of $48.9 (December 31, 2019 — unrealized losses of $31.5), and unrealized losses on defined benefit pension plans of $22.0
{December 31, 2019 — unrealized gains of $6.6).

r) Advertising Costs

The cost of advertising is expensed as incurred, except for cooperative advertising obligations, which are expensed at the time
the related sales are recognized and the advertising credits are eamed. Cooperative advertising obligations are recorded as a reduction
to revenue when the cooperative advertising obligation is estimated to be used for Mitel product or services and are recorded as
selling, general and administrative expenses when the cooperative advertising obligation is estimated to be used for cooperative
advertising of Mitel products and services. Advertising costs are recorded in selling. general and administrative expenses. For the year
ended December 31, 2020. the Company incurred $6.0 of advertising costs, of which $3.1 related to cooperative advertising expenses
(vear ended December 31, 2019 — $8.4 of advertising costs, of which $5.3 related to cooperative advertising expenses).

s} Product Warranties

At the time revenue is recognized, a provision for estimated warranty costs is recorded as a component of cost of sales. The
warranty accrual represents the Company’'s best estimate of the costs necessary to settle future and existing claims on products sold as
of the balance sheet date based on the terms of the warranty, which vary by customer and product. historical product return rates and



estimated average repair costs. The Company periodically assesses the adequacy of its recorded warranty provisions and adjusts the
amounts as necessary.

t) Restructuring, Integration and Acquisition-related Costs

Restructuring costs generally relate to workforce reductions and facility reductions incurred to eliminate duplication of activities
as a result of acquisitions or to improve operational efficiency. Costs related to workforce reductions are recorded when the Company
has committed to a plan of termination and notified the employees of the terms of the plan. Costs related to facility reductions
primarily consist of lease termination obligations for vacant facilities, which generally include the remaining payments on an
operating lease. Lease termination obligations are reduced for probable future sublease income. In addition, integration costs include
professional services and consulting services incurred to complete the integration of acquisitions, which are expensed as incurred.
Acquisition-related costs consist of incremental costs incurred for diligence activities and closing costs for acquisitions and
divestitures and are expensed as incurred.

u) Government Assistance

For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company received $10.3 from various government-assistance programs relating to
COVID-19 {year ended December 31, 2019 — nil). The government-assistance programs related primarily to payroll costs incurred
and were recorded as other income (expense) on the consolidated statements of operations.

v) Accounting Pronouncements Issued, but not yet Adopted
Credit losses on financial instruments

In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU 2016-13 “Financial [nstruments — Credit Losses” and other related amendments to improve
information on credit losses for financial assets and net investment in leases that are not accounted for at fair value through net
income. The ASU replaces the current incurred loss impairment methodology with a methodology that reflects expected credit
losses, The ASU is effective for the Company for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2022, including interim periods within
those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted in fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, The Company is currently evaluating
the effect the adoption of this ASU will have on its consolidated financial statements.

Changes to disclosure requirements for defined benefit plans

In August 2018, the FASB issued ASU 2018-14 “Disclosure Framework — Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Defined
Benefit Plans” to improve the effectiveness of disclosures for defined benefit plans. The ASU is effective for the Company for fiscal
years ending after December 15, 2021. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the effect the adoption of
this ASU will have on its consolidated financial statements.

3. DIVESTITURES
a) Divestiture of managed infrastructure services business

[n July 2020, Mitel completed the sale of its U.S.-based provider of managed infrastructure services for cash proceeds of $62.6
and deferred consideration of $3.0. The sale was made to an affiliate of shareholders of the Company’s parent entity. The Company
recorded a gain on divestiture of $1.6, consisting of total consideration of $63.6, less net assets of $64.0 consisting of intangible assets
of $32.2, goodwill of $29.8 and net working capital of $2.0. The gain on divestiture is included in other income {expense} in the
consolidated statement of operations. The divested business had annualized revenues of approximately $34.0 relating to the UCaa$
revenue stream, while operating income was not material. The operations were not reclassified as discontinued operations as the
divestiture was not considered a strategic shift that would have a major effect on the Company s operations.

b) Divestiture of hospitality business

[n February 2020, Mitel completed the sale of a small U.K.-based provider of hospitality services for cash proceeds of $1.0 and
deferred consideration of $1.8. The Company recorded a loss on divestiture of $7.7, consisting of total consideration of $2.8, less net
assets of $10.5 consisting of intangible assets of $7.1, goodwill of $5.1 and net working capital of ($1.7). The loss on divestiture is
included in other income (expense) in the consolidated statement of operations. The divested business had annualized revenues of
approximately $7.0 relating to the UC revenue streams, while operating income was not material. The operations were not reclassified
as discontinued operations as the divestiture was not considered a strategic shift that would have a major effect on the Company’s
operations.



4. OTHER CURRENT ASSETS

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Prepaid expenses and deferred charges......ccoocvviciiienen 3 28.8 5 26.4
Unbilled receivables ... eeiiirieciee e 4.4 4.8
Income tax receivable ..o e 8.4 97
Other receivables ..oooeeveereeevecneen. 17.4 19.6
Restricted cash.....ccvvivecvevviervnicineeans . 0.8 1.3
$ 59.8 5 61.8
5. PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2018
Accumaulated Accumulated
Cost amortization Net Cost amortization Net
Property and Equipment .........cc.occcvemvenvicervccnerninivaiennenns. 3 121.8 8 (57.8) $ 640 5 857 § 30.1) § 556

Depreciation expense on property and equipment recorded in the year ended December 31, 2020 amounted to $27.7 (year ended
December 31, 2019 - $27.7).

6. IDENTIFIABLE INTANGIBLE ASSETS

December 31, 2020 D¢cember 31, 2019
Accumulated Accumulated
Cost amortization Net Cost amortization Net
Developed technology ..... S 784.1 3 (233.4) $ 5507 § 8154 § (126.2) $ 689.2
Customer relationships.... 473.2 (140.8) 3324 4921 (76.2) 4159
e )T o U 13.5 — 13.5 13.5 — 13.5
Patents and other.....cv e s sree e sere s e ssennsenns 4.3 2.9) 1.4 2.4 (1.8 0.6

512751 8 (377.1) § 898.0 §$153234 § (204.2) $1,119.2

The cost for customer relationships, developed technology and trademarks represents the fair value of intangible assets upon
acquisition. The customer relationships and developed technology are being amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated
useful lives of seven years. The patents and other consists primarily of the cost to register and defend patents and are primarily
amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of four years.

Amortization of identifiable intangible assets for the year ended December 31, 2020 was $183.8 (year ended December 31, 2019
— $188.9). The estimated amortization expense, related to intangible assets in existence as of December 31, 2020, over the next five
fiscal years is as follows: 2021 — $180.0, 2022 — $180.0, 2023 — $180.0, 2024 — $179.9 and 2025 — §164.6.

7. GOODWILL

Goodwill relates to the November 30, 2018 acquisition of Mitel Networks Corporation, as described in note 1.

Goodwill, December 31, 2019 $ 8025
Divestitures (Note 3} vvvvrvvienvrivrrsvvvrernrsrrrcvsceneneeenenes. 3 (34.9)

Goodwill, December 31, 2020......cocviievcrirvereeeeee. 5 767.6



8. OTHER NON-CURRENT ASSETS

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Debt issue costs relating to the revolving
credit facility, net.....cocoveeceecececeeee 8 1.7 $ 23
Contract COStS....oocovrrrerrererecerree e neeenis 51.6 399
Other non-current assetS......coocevvveeeeeeeeeeeeen 11.4 8.6
) 64.7 3 50.8
9. ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND ACCRUED LIABILITIES
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Trade payables ... SRUTOIURUPIOSSORVI. 49.6 b 458
Employee- related payab!es 49.0 54.3
Accrued liabilities .. 66.7 75.3
Restructuring, warrant; and other provisions 13.5 17.0
Other payables.........ccocoviviiiiiiciii 54.9 37.0
$ 233.7 b 229.4
1. LONG-TERM DEBT
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
First lien term loan, seven-year term, maturing
November 2025 .. e B 1,097.6 b 1,108.8
Second lien term loan e1ght-year term maturmg
November 2026 .. 260.0 260.0
Revolving credit fac111ty, maturmg November 2023 25.0 48.0
Unamortized original issue discount........coccvieciveeninn. (6.4) (7.2)
Unamortized debt iS5U€ COSIS ..oovervrvenr e (33.1) (38.00
FIrance [eases. ..o csraeee e e eneeeeenas 6.2 5.7
1,349.3 1,377.3
Less! CLUTENL POTLION. ceiicericccecre e e ece e ecamrerevae e e (12.8) (12.6)
$ 1,336.5 $ 1.364.7
2018 Credit Facilities

On November 30, 2018, in connection with the acquisition of Mitel Networks Corporation (as described in note 1), the
Company completed borrowings under the 2018 Credit Facilities. The senior credit facilities initially consisted of a $1,120.0 first lien
term loan, a $260.0 second lien term loan and a $100.0 revolving credit facility (together, the “2018 Credit Facilities™). On October
22, 2020, the revolving credit facility was reduced to $90.0 in connection with the amendment, as described below.

Costs incurred in connection with the 2018 Credit Facilities of $43.2 were recorded net against long-term debt and are being
amortized over the duration of each respective term loan. Costs incurred of $2.9 relating to the revolving credit facility have been
recorded as other non-current assets and are being amortized on a straight-line basis over the term of the revolving credit facility.

The first lien term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 4.50% or, at the option of the Company, a base rate plus an applicable
margin. The first lien term loan requires quarterly repayments of $2.8 with the balance due on maturity in November 2025. In
addition, the first lien term loan requires annual payments of a certain percentage of excess cash flow (as defined in the credit
agreement), to be paid within 95 days of the end of the fiscal year. The estimated excess cash flow payment for the year ended
December 31, 2020 is nil. The second lien term loan bears interest at LIBOR plus 8.73% or, at the option of the Company, a base rate
plus an applicable margin. The second lien term loan requires no quarterly repayments and is due on maturity in November 2026. The



tevolving credit facility bears interest at LIBOR plus 4.50% or, at the option of the Company, a base rate plus an applicable margin
and matures in November 2023. The revolving credit facility has a 0.50% commitment fee for any undrawn amounts.

On October 25, 2018 the Company entered into an interest rate swap to effectively fix the LIBOR portion of the interest rate on
approximately 70% of its outstanding borrowings under the 2018 Credit Facilities for the period from April 2019 to February 2024, as
described in note 17.

The 2018 Credit Facilities have customary default clauses and contain affirmative and negative covenants, including: petiodic
financial reporting requirements, limitations on the incurrence of additional indebtedness, limitations on liens, limitations on
investments, and limitations on the payment of dividends and repurchases of shares. The Company was in compliance with these
covenants at December 31, 2019 and 2020. In addition, when the revolving credit facility is more than 35% utilized {excluding up to
$10.0 of utilization from undrawn letters of credit) at the end of any fiscal quarter, beginning with the quarter ended March 31, 2019,
the Company is required to have a Net First Lien Leverage Ratio (as defined in the 2018 Credit Facilities) below 6.25:1.00. At
December 31, 2020, the Net First Lien Leverage Ratio was 5.55 (December 31, 2019 - 5.17).

On October 22, 2020, the Company completed an amendment of the 2018 Credit Facilities. The amendment increased the Net
First Lien Leverage Ratio, which is applicable when the revolving credit facility is more than 33% utilized, from 6.25:1.00 to
7.25:1.00 beginning with the quarter ending March 31, 2021 up to and including the quarter ending December 31, 2021. In addition,
the amendment reduced the revolving credit facility from $100.0 to $90.0 and limited access to certain debt incurrence and restricted
payments for the year ending December 31, 2021.

Other

The Company has additional credit facilities totaling $2.3, of which $0.5 was utilized at December 31, 2020 {December 31,
2019 —52.2, of which $0.8 was utilized), primarily to provide letters of credit.

11. COMMITMENTS, GUARANTEES AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments

Operating Leases
The Company primarily leases facilities in the U.S and Europe under operating leases. For the year ended December 31, 2020,
the Company’s expense for operating leases, which approximates the cash paid, was $27.7 (vear ended December 31, 2019 — $32.5).

Other information on operating leases is as follows:

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Weighted average lease term remaining...........ccovevine, 8.1 years 8.9 years
Weighted average discount rate of operating lease
OB IIZALIONS 1ovevve e 5.9% 6.1%
Assets obtained in exchange for operating lease
obligations during the year.......ocoovvvvecevicirireeceens. 3 18.3 $ 333

Future minimum operating lease payments, primarily consisting of base rent for facilities, are as tfollows;

Fiscal year

022 ettt e e et e e b et ene e e 17.6
2023t et e e bt emeenn s e aes 14.3
2024 et ettt ae e e nanae e ten 10.7
TREICALIET ..ottt et ba et st en s nsnes 45.9
Total undiscounted lease obligations........o o veviveeincrve i 119.5
Less: imputed IMEIESt. . vieiiiie ittt e s eeeas (27.0)
Total operating lease obligation, December 31, 2020... 92.5
Le55: CUITENE POIION...ceevirerirsesereeerireaenserei e sirse st st s st sssasearenssasassarsasens (19.4)

Non-current portion of operating lease obligation, December 31, 2020. § 73.1



Guarantees

The Company has the following major types of guarantees:

Product Warranties

The Company provides its customers with standard warranties on hardware and software for periods up to 15 months. The
following table details the changes in the warranty liability:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Balance, opening.....ccceccevvveviececciccrecee. $ 2.9 $ 2.6
Warranty costs paid.....ccocooveeecerieeeiee s 2.0) (2.3)
WaITanties eXPense .o.oueieeeveeeeeeiresrenesaearenas 1.9 2.6
Balance, closing .....ooceveneeeenceeeeseiniee s $ 2.8 3 2.9

Intellectual Property fndemnification Obligations

The Company enters into agreements with customers and suppliers on a regular basis that include limited intellectual property
indemnification obligations that are customary in the industry. These guarantees generally require the Company to compensate the
other party for certain damages and costs incurred as a result of third-party intellectual property claims arising from these transactions.
The nature of these intellectual property indemnification obligations prevents the Company from making a reasonable estimate of the
maximum potential amount it could be required to pay to its customers and suppliers. Historically, the Company has not made any
significant indemnitication payments under such agreements and no amount has been accrued in the Consolidated Financial
Statements with respect to these guarantees.

Contingencies

Letters of Credit and Guarantees

Letters of credit, financial guarantees and other similar instruments are reviewed regularly, and the results of these reviews are
considered in assessing the adequacy of the Company’s reserve for possible credit and guarantee losses. Letters of credit, bank
guarantees and other similar instruments amounted to $2.5 at December 31, 2020 (December 31, 2019 — $3.8). The estimated fair
value of letters of credit, bank guarantees and similar instruments, which is equal to the fees paid to obtain the obligations, was not
significant at December 31, 2020 or December 31, 2019.

Legal proceedings

The Company is party to legal proceedings, claims and potential claims arising in the normal course of business. The
Company’s management and legal counsel estimate that any monetary liability or financial impact of such claims or potential claims
to which the Company might be subject afier final adjudication would not be material to the Consolidated Financial Statements. In
circumstances where the outcome of the lawsuit is expected to be unfavorable, the Company has recorded a provision for the expected
settlement amount. Where the expected settlement amount is a range, the Company has provided for the best estimate within that
range. [f no amount within the range is more likely, the Company has provided tor the minimum amount of the range.

12. COMMON SHARES
Share Capital

At December 31, 2020, the share capital of the Company comprises of 134.7 million shares (December 31. 2019 — 134.7 million
shares). The Company may issue an unlimited number of shares.

In February 2019, the Company issued 0.2 million shares for cash proceeds of $0.8.

Stock Option Plan

In December 2018, the Company adopted a stock option plan. Options were first granted under the plan in 2019. The
Company’s board of directors has the discretion to determine and subsequently amend the terms of awards granted under the plan,
subject to limits contained in the plan.



Options granted under the plan are generally granted for a fixed number of shares with an exercise price at least equal to the fair
market value of the shares at the date of grant and have a term of ten years.

The plan permits the grant of up to 16.6 million options to be granted to emplovees of the parent entity or its subsidiaries. Any
forfeitures, lapses or terminations again become available for grant under the plan. As at December 31, 2020, 2.6 million options were
available to be granted under the plan.

Stock Option Information

The following is a summary of the Company’s stock option activity:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Number of Exercise Number of Exercise
Optigns Price Options Price

Outstanding options:

Balance, beginning of year......ccvvveviriveeiceiencenes 107 8 5.69 — 5 —
Granted ........... 6.0 5.86 16.3 5.70
Exercised ........ — -— — —
Forfeited.... (1.9) 5.93 (3.4) 5.71
EXPIFEd.viveeeci e s (0.8) 5.90 (0.2) 5.86

Balance, end of year......cccoceeiiieir e 140 § 5.72 10,7 § 5.69

Number of options exercisable . ....oiiieveecvrvseinnnns 25 § 5.66 — g 5.39

(1) Lessthan 0.1

The following table summarizes information about the Company 's stock options outstanding and exercisable at December 31,
2020:

Total outstanding Total exercisable
Weighted- Weighted-
Average Average
Remaining Remaining
Number of Contractual Number of Contractual
Exercise Price Options Life {ptions Life
B5.00. 10.6 8.9 years 1.9 8.7 years
$B.00. e 34 9.0years 0.6 8.8 years

14.0 2.5



Additional information with respect to unvested stock option activity is as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Weighted Weighted

Average Average

Number of Exercise Number of Exercise

Options Price Options Price
Outstanding options:

Unvested, beginning of year............cccocoevvmances 1.7 $ 5.69 —  $ —
Granted .....ccevvvverireriee s verresrers e 6.0 5.86 16.3 5.70
VESLEA i s (3.3) 5.72 (0.2) 5.80
Forfeited.... (1.9) 5.93 (5.4) 5.71
Unvested, end of year ... 11.5 % 5.73 10.7 % 5.69

Stock-based compensation expense

Stock-based compensation expense for stock options is based on the fair value of the stock options on the date of grant,
calculated using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which is expensed on a steaight-line basis over the vesting period.
Assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model are summarized as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019

Risk-free INErest rate. ..o e eerrereres 0.8% 2.2%
DIvVEAENds et e 0.0% 0.0%
Expected volatility ..o 60.0% 29.8%
Expected life of the options ..., 6.25 years 6.25 years
Weighted average fair value per option ........cceeeeeeen. $ 2.13 h) 1.48

At December 31, 2020, there was $17.8 of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to stock options that is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of 3.1 years.

13. RESTRUCTURING, INTEGRATION AND ACQUISITION-RELATED COSTS

Restructuring, integration and acquisition-related costs of $26.4 were recorded in the vear ended December 31, 2020. The costs
consisted of $18.4 of workforce reduction and facility-reduction related charges and $8.0 of integration and acquisition and
divestiture-related charges. Integration-related charges include professional fees and incidental costs relating to the integration of
acquisitions. Acquisition and divestiture-related charges consisted primarily of legal and advisory fees.

Restructuring, integration and acquisition-related costs of $48.8 were recorded in the year ended December 31, 2019. The costs
consisted of $24.5 of workforce reduction and facility-reduction related charges and $24.3 of integration and acquisition-related
charges. Integration-related charges include professional fees and incidental costs relating to the integration of acquisitions.
Acquisition-related charges consisted primarily of legal and advisory fees.

At December 31, 2020, a workforce reduction liability of $4.3 and the current portion of the lease termination obligation
liability of $2.3 are included in accounts payable and accrued liabilities, with the remaining non-current portion of the lease
termination obligation liability of $3.7 included in other non-current liabilities.

The following table summarizes details of the Company's restructuring liabilities:



. - Facility- .-

Reduction
Related, Including
Lease
Waorkforce Termination
Description Reduction Obligations Total
Balance of provision as of December 31,2018 .....ccceevevveeeeee.. § 35 §% 24 % 10.9
Year ended December 31, 2019:
ChaTZES . vetieiie it isicsisiint sttt sttt 16.4 8.1 24.5
Cash PAYITIENTS cocvvvee i evircsre e eseceresrares s erae s e eeneeas (17.1) (5.3 (22.4)
Balance of provision as of December 31, 2019 ....occcvveernrvnrinnnn $ 7.8 % 52 % 13.0
Year ended December 31, 2020:
CRATZES. .ot 13.3 5.1 18.4
Cash PAYMENts .c.oovvceei e (16.8) 4.3) 2L
Balance of provision as of December 31, 2020 ...ccccvcvcvccccecee. $ 43 § 60 $ 10.3
14. SUPPLEMENTARY CASH FLOW INFORMATION
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Change in non-cash operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable ... B 21.0 $ 43.9
ITUVEIIEOTIES 1oevveri e eeeeeeeseee e semreenneseteeeeesmeessemanensbabe s saneananes 0.5 (13.2)
Other CUITent ASSELS.....ccoiviiercrer et er e 6.2 18.9
Other non-current assets .. (13.4) (31.2)
Accounts payable and accrued l1ab111t1es 7.0 (53.8)
Deferred revenue . (6.9) 17.6
Other non-current llabllmes 7.2 11.1
Change in pension Hability ..ot (15.0) (10.9)
3 6.6 $ (17.6)
INMerest PayIMEnTS. ...t s s s 112.6 $ 108.8
[ncome tax payments... . .5 6.2 5 7.9
Disclosure of non~cash activities durmg the pen:od
Property and equipment additions financed through inventory......... 8 i1.0 $ 10.6
Property and equipment additions financed through finance leases.. $ 2.6 5 4.4
15. INCOME TAXES
Details of income taxes are as follows:
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Current income tax recovery (expense)............ § (7.4) $ (8.7)
Deferred income tax recovery (expense).......... 13.6 36.9
5 6.2 $ 28.2

The income tax recovery reported differs from the amount computed by applying U.K. rates to the loss before income taxes. The
reasons for these differences and their tax effects are as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Expected tax LAl ...vviviiivinei s crcrssrave e e ssrnae e 19.0% 19.0%
Expected tAX TECOVETY i eeeeceeercrereseeeenreene B 40.5 $ 46.1

Foreign tax rate differences ... 7.4 14.5



Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Net change in valuation allowance on deferred tax
ASSELS coevnrennee (30.8) (14.7)
Permanent dlfferences (7.0 (3.5)
Tax credits and other adgustments (3.8) (12.2)
[NCOMme tax recoVery (EXPENSE} cv e urmrcrrmrerernsrnsiniens ) 6.2 b 28.2

The tax effect of compenents of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Assets (liabilities):
Net operating loss and credit carryforwards....... $ 223.8 3 2154
Capital loss carryforwards......coeevvcnvernerenenennne 21.2 34.7
Allowance for doubtful accounts.... 1.9 1.8
Inventories .. 0.9 0.2
Restructurmg and other PTOVISIONS .oeeveeieins 1.8 4.8
Pension Hability e, 18.3 14.1
Revenue recognition......vvvmvvvcnrevsnneeinrnrenrneninns (3.8) (8.5)
INtANZIDIES 1ovrere vttt (193.6) (249.1)
Long-term debt and other ..o 47.5 40.5
Sales-type lease obligations........c.occveeeinneennee. 11.2 16.4
Property and equipment........ccocovinicininiininne, 0.5 (1.1}
Operating lease liabilities ......oviieeiinicncniicnin (23.8) (24.3)
Right of Use asS€18 couvvevvrrivcree v vereeversressrerne e 23.8 24.3
Total deferred tax assets net of deferred tax liabilities,
before valuation allowance...........ocrivccniinscainens 127.9 69.2
Valuation allowance ..o e (121.3) (85.2)
Net deferred tax assets (liabilities) ..ovvevcviiccrerieeee B 6.6 $ {16.0)

The Company updates its assessment of the realizability of its deferred tax assets at each reporting period. At December 31,
2020, as a result of uncertainty regarding the future utilization of certain deferred tax assets, there was a valuation allowance of $121.3
against deferred tax assets primarily in the U.K. and U.8. (December 31, 2019 — valuation allowance of $85.2 against deferred tax
assets primarily in the U.K. and U.8.). Future changes in estimates of taxable income could result in a significant change to the
valuation allowance. For the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019, there were no significant changes to the
assessment of the realizability of the Company’s deferred tax assets.

The Company had the following tax-effected loss carryforwards and tax credits:

Decemnber 31, 2020

Tax Tax
Year of Expiry Losses Credits
2024-2040 1o e b e e r st st a e en s e 36.0 83.0
0T =1 15 = TR 51.5 70.0
< VORI ON $ 880 5 1572

These tax loss carryforwards primarily relate to operations in the U.S. and France. Tax credit carryforwards primarily relate to
operations in the U.S. and Canada. The U.8. has an annual restriction on the utilization of tax-gffected loss carrytorwards and tax
credits of $67.7.

The Company operates in multiple jurisdictions throughout the world and its tax returns are subject to ongoing examinations by
certain taxing authorities in those jurisdictions. The Company regularly assesses the status of these examinations and the potential for



adverse outcomes to determine the adequacy of the provisions for income taxes. The Company believes that it has adequately
provided for tax adjustments that are probable as a result of any ongoing or future examinations,

The Company has undistributed earnings of its foreign subsidiaries which are considered to be indefinitely reinvested and
accordingly no provision for income taxes has been provided. The determination of the amount of unrecognized deferred income tax
liability for undistributed earnings is not practicable. If circumstances change and it becomes apparent that some or all of the
undistributed earnings of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries will be remitted to a parent company, the Company will record a tax
liability.

Uncertain Tax Positions

At December 31, 2020, the Company recorded a proviston for uncertain tax positions of $33.9 (December 31, 2019 ~ $30.1), of
which $11.7 is included in other non-current liabilities and $24.2 is recorded net against deferred tax assets in the consolidated balance
sheet. The amount of unrecognized tax benefits at December 31, 2020 that would affect the effective tax rate, if recognized, was
f18.9.

The Company recognizes any interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense. At December
31, 2020, in addition to the unrecognized tax benefits above, the Company has a balance of $5.8 for the potential payment of interest
and penalties (December 31, 2019 — $4.7). For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company expensed $0.7 for the potential
payment of interest and penalties (year ended December 31,2019 — $1.3).

The Company routinely engages in discussions and negotiations with tax authorities regarding tax matiers in various
jurisdictions throughout the year. The Company believes it is reasonably possible that certain federal, foreign, and state tax matters
may be concluded in the next 12 months. The Company estimates that the unrecognized tax benefits inclusive of interest at December
31, 2020 are expected to be reduced by $5.2 in the next |2 months.

The Company or its subsidiaries file income tax returns in a significant number of countries. These tax returns are subject to
examination by local taxing authorities. The following summarizes the open years by major jurisdiction: Canada — 2016 to 2020 and
for specific types of transactions from 2011 to 2012; the U.S. — 2018 to 2020; Germany - 2014 to 2020; France — 2018 to 2020;
Sweden — 2015 to 2020; Switzerland -— 2016 to 2020; and the UK. — 2017 to 2020.

At December 31, 2020, the Company is presently under audit in France for the 2012 and 2013 tax years, Germany for the 2014-
2017 years, Canada for the 2011 through 2019 tax years and in the U.S. for 2019. The resolution of tax matters in these jurisdictions is
not expected to be material to the Consolidated Financial Staternents.

16. PENSION PLANS

The Company maintains defined contribution pension plans or defined benefit plans that cover a significant portion of its
employees.

Defined Contribution Plans

The Company contributes to defined contribution pension plans on the basis of the percentage specified in each plan. The costs
of the defined contribution plans are expensed as incurred. For the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company made contributions
to these plans of $9.2 (vear ended December 31, 2019 - $11.2),

Defined Benefit Plans
Description of defined benefit plans

The Company's projected benefit obligation and plan assets, by defined benefit plan, at December 31, 2020 were as follows:

U.K. Plan Switzerland Plan All Other Total
Projected benefit obligation... . 3427 § 916 § 204 § 4547
PHan @SS€L8 ..vuviiviie ittt eenaeeenn 276.1 85.9 — 362.0

Pension Hability ..o $ 66.6 3 5.7 § 204 % 92.7




The Company’s projected benefit obligation and plan assets, by defined benefit plan, at December 31, 2019 were as follows:

U.K. Plan Switzerland Plan All Other Total
Projected benefit obligation......ccccvceeierecevivr i 8 2854 % 914 § 173 § 394.1
Plan @SSELS ..veveeeeeerirsenreemrarerenrerarsens 2354 84.4 — 319.8
Pension Hability ...coovioeiieeciciceeecc et e e eres b 500 % 7.0 % 173 % 74.3
{.K Plan

The Company operates a partially funded defined benefit plan in the UK. (*U.K. Plan™), which was closed to new members in
2001 and was closed to new service in 2012.

Switzerland Plan

The Company operates a partially funded multiple-employer pension plan in Switzerland (“Switzerland Plan™). Under the
Switzerland Plan, retirees generally benefit from the receipt of a perpetual annuity at retirement based on an accrued value at the date
of retirement. The accrued value is related to the actual returns on contributions during the working period. As the plan is a multiple-
employer plan, the Consolidated Financial Statements include the Company’s pro-rata share of assets, projected benefit obligation and
pension benefit cost.

Cther

The Company operates unfunded defined benefit plans related to France, [taly and Germany (“France Plan™, “Italy Plan” and
“Germany Plan”, respectively). Under the France Plan and ltaly Plan, retirees generally benefit from a lump sum payment upon
retirement or departure. Under the Germany Plan, retirees generally benefit from the receipt of a perpetual annuity at retirement based
on their years of service and ending salary.

The defined benefit plan disclosures below are provided in aggregate for all defined benefit plans, unless otherwise noted.

Plan assets and projected benefit obligation information

The change in aggregate projected benefit obligation and plan assets was as follows:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Change in projected benefit obligation:

Benefit obligation, opening ....ocecccvv e $ 394.1 5 366.3
SErVICE COSt it 1.0 1.2
Interest cost 5.9 8.6
Employee contributions....c..covevveeeecrevveriecnnnnes 0.7 0.8
Plan amendments.......cuvieenvinrnionircrnisininenns 0.1 —
Actuarial loss 47.2 24.4
Benefits paid. ... vreeivrvverversmrr e senrsesenaens (8.3) (8.8)
CUrtailments «oo.ooceeceecieee e LD (6.1}
Settlements.............. (6.9) (3.1)
Foreign exchange ..ooooceoveeenevcneee e 22.6 10.8
Benefit obligation, closing «.....ceviiiivnnennes 3 454.7 5 394.1
Year Ended Year Ended

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Change in plan assets:

Fair value of plan assets, opening........c.occeveens $ 319.8 $ 270.2
Actual returm on plan assets......coeceeviienieiiens 27.1 43.2
Employer contributions ......c.ocoeevvverrvvervesernennes 11.4 8.0
Employee contributions......cvcvieeeveeciencnienn, 0.7 0.8
Benefits paid......ccocoiii i (8.0) (8.5)
SeLtIEMENTS ..ocveeeiee v v r e enrenees (6.9) 3.1

Foreign exchange ...l 17.9 9.2




Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019

Fair value of plan assets, closing.......cccc.c.... $ 362.0 $ 319.8
Net pension liability ..ooooevvevreeiieerreee. 8 92.7 3 74.3

The following table provides the Company’s aggregate accumulated benefit obligation:

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Accumulated benefit obligation .....ooococviieeieieenenn. 450.7 390.9
Periodic benefit cost
The aggregate net periodic benefit cost was as follows:
Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
Current service cost — defined benefit... .5 0.9 $ 1.2
INTErESt COST.ciiiiiiiniiiic e e 5.9 8.6
Expected return on plan assets ....cvovericnieeniinieens (10.0) (9.4}
Recognized actuarial gain.......ccocoveeniiiciin (0.1) —
Curtaillment ... — (2.8)
Net periodic defined benefit cost (recovery)..ooinn. 8 (3.3) $ 2.4)

Assumptions

The following assumptions were used to determine the periodic pension expense for the UK. Plan:

Year Ended Year Ended
Diecember 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
DISCOUNT TALE .veviivisieereeeveseseeeesrrsrnssesinrseesesnsrsassaranssses 2.05% 2.95%
INSTAtioN TALE. ..vivi i ciee i et r s e e e e b e s esraae s 2.80% 3.20%
Investment returns assumption ..o vrenrenenn. 3.45% 4.01%

The following assumptions were used to determine the net present value of the projected benefil obligation for the UK. Plan:

December 31, December 31,
2020 2019
Discount rate 1.45% 2.05%
[NEIALION FALE. o vveriviirreeveriare e saresrssnesrsarene s rarrrrsesenn 2.95% 2.80%

(1Y Asaresult of the UK. Plan’s November 2012 pension curtailment, members no longer earn benefits for current service and
therefore the compensation rate increase and average remaining service life are not factors in determining the net present value
of accrued pension benefits.

The following assumptions were used to determine the periodic pension expense for the Switzerland Plan:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
DHSCOUNE TALE . eurienrivrireveeiveresresaneresererernsssessessrssessens 0.10% 0.80%
[NTIAON FAIE....eeeei e et ne e 1.00% 1.00%
[nvestment returns assumption .. 2.20% 2.10%



The following assumptions were used to determine the net present value of the projected benefit obligation for the Switzerland
Plan:

Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, 2020 December 31, 2019
DISCOUNE TALE v ccrerr s s mvtrver e e reree s me e s as s ans 0.05% 0.10%
INflation Fate.......icieereresre et esiir s eetv s estnt e erees 0.90% 1.00%
Compensation inCrease rate ..o vvervineescesinienenns 1.40% 1.50%
Average remaining service life of employees............ 8 years 8 years

Estimated future benefit payments

The table below reflects the total benefits expected to be paid in each of the next five years and in the aggregate for the
subsequent five years.

Benefit
Payments

2022 e SO, 11.7
2023 (e 11.8
2024 .. 12.0
2025 e 12.5

Contributions

The Company expects to make annual employer contributions of approximately $9.3 (£6.8) to fund the U.K. Plan deficit in 2021
and 2022. The amount of annual employer contributions required to fund the pension deficit is determined every three vears in

accordance with U.K. regulations. The Company expects to make employer contributions of $0.5 to fund the Switzerland Plan in
2021,

Plan assets

The Company s target allocation and actual pension plan asset allocation by asset category for the UK Plan were as follows:

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2020 December 31,2019 December 31, 2019

Actual Target (1) Actual Target (1)
[ OF:1:) | (USSR PSR 6% 0% 10% 0%
EQUILIES tovoeir ettt is e 49% 49% 48% 51%
Debt SeCUrities...oorverererreeirererre e rene e 39% 41% 38% 44%
OthET ccec e e 6% 9% 4% 5%

(1)  Under the current statement of investment principles of the plan, the target allocation includes a 23% allocation (year ended
December 31, 2019 - 25% allocation) to liability-driven investments ("LDI” funds) and a 35% allocation (vear ended December
31, 2019 — 30% allocation) to diversified target return funds. These allocations have been assigned to the equity, debt security
and other targets based on the investments held at the end of the period.

The Company’s target allocation and actual pension plan asset allocation by asset category for the Switzerland Plan were as
follows:

December 31, 2020 December 31, 2020 December 31, 2016 December 31, 2019

Actual Target Actual Target
Cash .o e 14% 5% 14% 5%
Debt SECUMITIES 1eviiveeeiiricesiiereciiiie e ssresiaesair s 21% 27% 20% 27%
Real @Stae .coeemee ettt i st e 34% 37% 34% 37%
EQUILIES ovrieecreee et rercene s s s e se e rnns st sneen 25% 24% 26% 24%

Other. e 6% 7% 6% 7%



The investment objectives of the pension portfolio of assets are designed to generate returns that will enable the fund to meet its
future obligations, The performance benchmark for the investment managers is to earn in excess of the index return in those asset
categories, which are actively managed.

The long-term return assumption at December 31, 2020 is 2.9% for the U.K. Plan and 2.4% for the Switzerland Plan. In setting
the overall expected rate of return, the various percentages of assets held in each asset class together with the investment return
expected from that class are taken into account. A consistent approach is used to develop the investment return assumptions. The
approach considers various factors, including historical and expected inflation, bond yields, and returns from specitic asset classes.
The assumption is based on consideration of all inputs, with a focus on long-term trends to avoid short-term market influences.

The following table discloses the major categoty of fair value (as described in note 18):

Fair Value Measurement at December 31, 2020
Quoted Price in

Active Significant
Markets Other Significant
for Identical Observable Unobservable
Instruments Inputs Inputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Cash i s b 275 % — 5 — 3 27.5
EQUILIES et ee et s bttt e —_ 157.1 — 157.1
BOndS. e — 125.6 — 125.6
Real estate .............. — — 29.2 29.2
L 11 T U U OO SRS — _ 22.6 22.6
b 275§ 2827 % 518 & 3620

Fair Value Measurement at December 31, 2019
Quoted Price in

Active Significant
Markets Other Significant
for [dentical Observable Unobservable
Instruments Inputs [nputs
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
CASP e en v s ene e et ee D 348 § -— % —  $ 34.8
EQUItIes. eee et e — 135.8 — 135.8
— 106.1 — 106.1
— — 28.7 28.7
— 14.4 14.4
$ 348 $ 2419 3 431 $ 3158

17. FOREIGN CURRENCY, CREDIT, INTEREST RATE AND CONCENTRATION RISK
Foreign currency risk

The Company operates globally, and therefore incurs expenses in currencies other than its various functional currencies and its
U.S. dollar reporting currency. The Company has used, and may use in the future, foreign currency forward contracts to hedge the fair
value of certain assets and liabilities as well as to hedge likely future cash flows denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency of the entity. The Company does not enter into forward contracts for speculative purposes.

Fair value hedging

The Company has used, and may use in the future. foreign currency forward contracts to minimize the short-term impact of
currency fluctuations on foreign currency receivables, payables and intercompany balances. Foreign currency contracts used to hedge
the fair value of foreign currency receivables, payables and intercompany balances are recorded at fair value, with changes in the fair



value recorded as other income (expense) in the consolidated statements of operations. At December 31, 2020 and December 31,
2019, all of the Company’s outstanding foreign currency forward contracts had a term of 35 days or less.

Cash flow hedging

The Company has used, and may use in the future, foreign currency forward contracts to hedge probable future cash flows. Cash
flow hedges are assessed for effectiveness at the time of inception and again at each reporting period. Foreign currency forward
contracts that are assessed as effective are recorded at fair value at each reporting period, with changes in the fair value recorded
through other comprehensive income {loss), net of tax. When foreign currency forward contracts are settled, the unrealized gain or
loss is removed from accumulated other comprehensive income {loss) and recorded as an increase or decrease to the hedged
transaction.

For the years ended December 31, 2020 and December 31, 2019 the Company did not enter into any forward contracts for
foreign currency cash flow hedging purposes.

On October 25, 2018, the Company entered into an interest rate swap agreement contingent on the closing of the acquisition of
Mitel Networks Corporation. On November 30, 2018, the Company completed the acquisition of Mitel Networks Corporation, as
described in note 1. The interest rate swap agreement effectively fixes the LIBOR portion of the interest expense to be approximately
3.1%, on approximately 70% of the term loans outstanding under the 2018 Credit Facilities for the period from April 2019 to February
2024. As the interest rate swap agreement was entered into prior to the borrowings under the 2018 Credit Facilities, the change in fair
value from the swap agreement date (October 25, 2018} up to the date of the borrowings (November 30, 2018) of $10.9 was recorded
as an expense in the consolidated statement of operations. Once the borrowings under the 2018 Credit Facilities were completed on
November 30, 2018, the hedge was determined to be effective and continued to be effective through the year ended December 31,
2020. For the year ended December 31, 2020, a loss of $23.4 was recorded in other comprehensive income (loss) to reflect the change
in fair value during the year (vear ended December 31, 2019 — loss of $26.3 was recorded in other comprehensive income(loss)). The
interest rate swap agreement had a fair value of negative $76.6 at December 31, 2020 {(December 31, 2019 — fair value of negative
$53.2).

Interest rate risk

As described in note 10, the Company is exposed to interest rate risk primarily on its credit facilities which bear interest at
LIBOR. The Company has effectively fixed its interest rate on approximately 70% of its term loans outstanding at December 31, 2020
by entering into an interest rate swap agreement, as described above. As a result, the Company s interest expense is exposed to
changes in interest rates on the remaining 30% of its outstanding debt. The Company periodically reviews its exposure to interest rate
risk and determines what actions, if any, should be taken to mitigate the risk.

In addition, the Company s defined benefit plans, as described in note 16, are exposed to changes in interest rate risk through
their investment in bonds and the discount rate assumptions on the projected benefit obligation. The Company is not exposed to any
other significant interest rate risk due to the short-term maturity of its monetary assets and current liabilities.

Credit risk

The Company’s financial assets that are exposed to credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash,
accounts receivable, other receivables, and assets held by the defined benetit pension plans. Cash is generally held in banks with an
investment grade rating. Cash equivalents are invested in government and commercial paper with investment grade credit rating. The
Company is exposed to normal credit risk from customers. However, the Company has a large number of diverse customers, which
minimizes concentrations of credit risk. As at and for the year ended December 31, 2020, the Company had a single distributor in the
U.S. that accounted for 14.2% of the Company’s revenues and 14.3% of the Company’s accounts receivable (as at and for the vear
ended December 31, 2019 — 15.2% of revenues and 14.3% of the accounts receivable). As at and for the years ended December 31,
2020 and December 31, 2019, no other single customer accounted tor more than 10 percent of the Company’s revenues or accounts
receivable.

Concentration risk

The Company sells its products and services to a broad set of enterprises ranging from large, multinational enterprises, to small
and mid-sized enterprises. Management believes that the Company’s concentration risk is limited by the geographic and industry
characteristics of its customers. The Company performs periodic credit evaluations of its significant customers’ financial condition
and generally does not require collateral for its accounts receivable although, in some cases, the Company will require payment in
advance or security in the form of letters of credit or third-party guarantees. Only one customer accounted for more than 10 percent of
the Company’s revenues or accounts receivable, as described above.

Four independent suppliers manufacture a significant portion of the Company’s products. The Company is not obligated to
purchase products from these specific suppliers in any specific quantity, except as the Company outlines in forecasts or orders for



products required to be manufactured by these companies. The Company s supply agreements with these suppliers results in a
concentration that, if suddenly eliminated, could have an adverse effect on the Company’s operations. While the Company believes
that alternative sources of supply would be available, disruption of its primary sources of supply could create a temporary, adverse
effect on product shipments.

18. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

The Company’s financial assets and liabilitics carried at fair value are measured using one of the following three categories:
Level 1: Quoted market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.
Level 2: Observable market-based inputs or unobservable inputs that are corroborated by market data.

Level 3: Unobservable inputs that are not corroborated by market data.

Assets/Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The Company’s cash equivalents, as described in note 2, are valued using the category Level 2. In addition, the Company’s
interest rate swap, as described in note 17, is valued using the category Level 2. The Company does not have any other significant
financial assets or liabitities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, other than the investments held by defined benefit pension
plans, as described in note 16.

Fair Value of Financial Instrumenis

The Company's financial instruments include cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash, accounts receivable, accounts payable,
long-term debt and the interest rate swap. Due 1o the short-term maturity ot cash, restricted cash, accounts receivable and accounts
pavable, the carrying value of these instruments is a reasonable estimate of their fair value. The interest rate swap is recorded at fair
value at each reporting peried. At December 31, 2020, the fair value of the first lien term loan and second lien term loan, as described
in note 10, was approximately 92% and 52% of their respective principal balances.

19. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

On November 27, 2018, the Company entered into a management consulting agreement with certain affiliates of shareholders
of its parent entity. The consulting agreement requires quarterly payments of $0.5 and terminates after eight years, or at the time of
transaction that results in 80% of the parent entity’s equity being held by new shareholders. The Company expensed $2.0 in relation to
this agreement in the year ended December 31, 2020 (year ended December 31, 2019 — $2.0). At December 31, 2020, $2.0 was
included in accounts payable related to the agreement (December 31, 2019 — $0.5).

In July 2020, Mitel completed the sale of its U.S.-based provider of managed infrastructure services for cash proceeds of
$62.6 and deferred consideration of $3.0. The sale was made to an affiliate of sharcholders of the Company’s parent entity and is
further described in note 3. In connection with sale, the Company provided transition services totaling $0.8. that were recorded as net
against selling, general and administrative costs in the consolidated statement of operations. At December 31, 2020, the Company
recorded a total of $3.0 as deferred consideration receivable ($1.5 as other current assets and $1.5 as other non-current assets) and $1.9
as other pavables in relation to collection services being provided under the transition service agreement.

20, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Subsequent events have been evaluated up to June 14, 2021. the date the financial statements were issued.



